TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

Board of Selectmen Agenda
January 13, 2022 @ 6:00 PM
VIRTUAL MEETING VIA ZOOM

Ways to join this webinar:

Join by computer or mobile device and click on: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85270109217
or go to ZOOM and enter the webinar ID: 852 7010 9217

By phone 1 (929) 205 6099 US

International numbers available: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kdYZuukuho

10.
11.

Call to Order.
Approve the December 22, 2021, selectmen meeting minutes.

Public Forum (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda).

Annual Investment Presentation by H.M. Payson.
Award bid for ANSI Certified Class 2 Jackets for the Fire Department.

Capital Improvement Plan

Review of correspondence from Norman Hanson DeTroy regarding School Board
Recall Initiatives.

Accept the following donations:

e $250 donation from Helen McConnell to the Nurse’s account to assist with
supplies, equipment, training, or any other needs.

¢ $1,000 from Atlantic Hall to the emergency fuel fund.
Other business.

a. Short-term rental update
Approve the January 13, 2022, Treasurer's Warrant.

Adjournment.



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 2

Town of Kennebunkport
Board of Selectmen Meeting VIA Zoom
December 23, 2021
9:00 AM

MINUTES

Selectmen attending via Zoom: Allen Daggett, Patrick Briggs, D. Michael Weston,
Edward Hutchins, and Sheila Matthews-Bull.

Others attending via Zoom: Michael Davis and Tracey O’Roak.

1.

Call to Order

Selectman Matthews-Bull called the meeting to order at 9:01 AM. She took roll call of
Selectmen present: Allen Daggett, Patrick Briggs, Michael Weston, Edward Hutchins,
and Sheila Matthews-Bull. She noted that there were three participants in the
audience.

Approve the December 9, 2021, meeting minutes.

Motion by Selectman Briggs seconded by Selectman Weston to approve the
December 9, 2021, selectmen meeting minutes. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston,
Matthews-Bull, and Daggett. Selectman Hutchins abstained as he was not at the
December 91" meeting. Voted: 4-0. Motion passed.

Public Forum. (This is an opportunity for anyone who wants to address the Board of
Selectmen with any issue that is not on the agenda.)

Selectman Matthews-Bull suggested giving Laurie Smith, Town Manager, a $10,000
Christmas bonus. She and the other selectmen listed just a few of the many reasons
why Ms. Smith deserves the bonus:

e Recipient of the Town Manager of the Year award for the State of Maine;

o The patience, diplomacy and fairness she brings to every situation:

o Her guidance through the challenges of COVID;

o She has managed top-level staff changes very well;

o Whether it's short-term rental challenges or staff changes, Ms. Smith lead with
minimal interruption;

o She received a prestigious Rotary award;

o Her budget skills through the unexpected pandemic demonstrated her solid
management skills;

« Finally, it was agreed that the Board is very proud of Laurie and her
accomplishments over the past year.

Ms. Smith stated that she was very humbled and appreciative of the gesture and the
support of the Board.



December 23, 2021, BOS Meeting Minutes

Motion by Selectman Briggs seconded by Selectman Hutchins to give Laurie Smith a
$10,000 Christmas Bonus. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Hutchins, Daggett and
Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Accept a $500 donation from Richard Driver to the emergency fuel fund.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins, seconded by Selectman Briggs to accept the
generous $500 donation from Richard Drive to the emergency fuel account. Roll Call
Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0.

Motion passed.

Other business.
Selectman Weston wished everyone a merry and safe Christmas.
Selectman Hutchins wished everyone a Merry Christmas.

Selectman Briggs thanked the Board for supporting the Housing Trust. The last homes
will be turned over in the next month. It has been a very challenging year and the
project couldn’t have happened without the Board’s support.

Selectman Daggett wished everyone a Merry Christmas.

Selectman Matthews-Bull wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.
She also stated that Prelude was a huge success in spite of the changes that were
made due to COVID.

Laurie Smith thanked the Board and staff for their hard work this year.
Approve the December 23, 2021, Treasurer’s Warrant.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins seconded by Selectman Briggs to approve the
December 23, 2021, Treasurer's Warrant. Roll Call Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett,
Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0. Motion passed.

Adjournment.

Motion by Selectman Hutchins seconded by Selectman Daggett to adjourn. Roll Call
Vote: Briggs, Weston, Daggett, Hutchins, and Matthews-Bull. Voted: 5-0.
Motion passed. Meeting adjourned at 9:13 am.

Submitted by,
Tracey O'Roak
Administrative Assistant

Page 2 of 2



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 4

HdOLVYLSININQY dIHSNOILY13Y

uosurqoy 7 Auudf

dIDVNVIN dIHSNOILV13Y

VAD ‘100113 [ YeoN

LWOdYUNQIUUIY JO UMOT,

404 d3dvd3idd

T¢0¢Z 'T€ H3dW3D23dA

MITAYY TUIUI]SIAU]

UOSACIINT

dIOVNVI O17041H0d

'bst] “‘AerT ‘N [o1UR(q



1202 'T€ J8quadaq Jo sY

%00°00T S06'0v6'T$ reiol
%96 0T S0.'2T2S spung Aunb3 ubiaio4
%E9°09 969'9.T'T$ Aunb3 pabeuen I
%SLE T6.'2.$ 413/pun4 puog AloBared ninn [
%96'8T 806°'29¢$ S8J0N ¥ spuog ajelodio) BN
WIL'S S08'0TT$ susreanby % ysed [l
JuU3diadd anpea sse|) 9|)s
waun) Ny
9£9°09 :Aunb3 pabieueny

%GLE
:d4137pung puog A10Ba1e0 ninw

0%96'QT 'SajoN P spuog ayelodiod

%96°0T :spund Ainb3 ubialoy
%T2'G 'swajeanb3 %3 ysed

LYIODINNTGINNAN 40 NMOL
JUNO0JDY Aq UOTIBIO[[Y 19SSV

UOSAe I N LHOdMNNEINNIN 40 NMOL



%19°6 %422
9%98'0T %8E"VT
%p9°ZT 9%92°9T
%851 %6E 6T

%I6°T %Sc'c

%29 » %T0°E

%180 9%90°T

%06°0 %L1'T

uinlay ssouny uInay ssoi9
(s102/82/20) slesap

areq G SNoIAdId

o} uondasuy
LIODINNIGINNTI 40 NMOL

%86°9T
%vE'ST

%8.°¢c
%252

%88°C
%08

%680
%E0°T
uIney ssolo

SIesp
€ snoinaud

%6V°ST
%IE LT

%eC’eEC
%89V

(%26°0)
(%2v°0)
9%¥0°0

%0T'0
uin)ay ssouo)

Teaj T snoinald

UBWLIOLIDG SSOIH JUNOIIY [eNPIAIPU]

uosAe NG

1202 ‘1€ Jaqwala( JO SV

‘pazirenuue ale syiuow ZT Buipaaoxa spousd Jo) suinsy

%¢ELS
%€0°9

%GE°8
%¥'8

(%6£90)
(%s€°0)

9%E0°0

9%S0°0

UIN}3y Ssol9)
TiL Buuuibaq
dlA [edsiy

uimal pousad fensed «

ginE
%S-PIDfIND Ul SN 99 BsZ(Snxe
IMOV %E2-00S d¥S %S2) %0,

elolL

SN-X3 IMOY %SZ ‘005 IS %S.
Ainb3|

AG -

T 1pai) 7 uswiianos sn Biaquioog
awodu| paxid|

Ig Ainseall ‘oW T 919SN 3514
AInb3 » ysed;
sse|) 19ssy

LHOdAINNGINNIN 40 NMOL



T20Z ‘T€ Jequada(q Jo sy

S06'0v6'T$ S06°076'T$ anfeA Buipug
789'786% 095'70T$ SSOT/UIes) JUBWISAAU|
(€22'86T$) 0$ uonnqLIuoY 18N
Pt vST' TS SPe'oes' TS anjeA ueis
(s102/82/20) T/ Buluuibaq QLA [easiy

ayeq o1 uondaosyy

JUIUNSTAU| J1ON === anjeaunclyy @

000'006%

000°002'1$

000'005'TS

000'008'T$

000'00T'2S
LIODINNTINNDI 40 NMOL
JUSUIISOAU] 19N 'SA INJEA JUNO0IDY

uoSsARJiH LHOJMNNGINNTN 40 NMOL



8107 Ul uonp|nd|pd Bulpuads gy ay) Buisn uobag,

€8°'08E'€8T$- 6Z°€98'TES- 6E'S9E'67$- 0L 0VL LYS- TR AN A

8e'qeL e 00'0$ 00°0$ 00'0% SO'TTI8'6T$- 00°0% €ETT6'069%

v¥'696'G$- 00°0% 000%$ 00'0% 00°0$ 97'698'9%- 00°0$

T0'989'6¥T%- 6E'TG6'EES- 6C'£98'TES- 6£'59€'67%- S9'676'L7%- S 7SS'v1$- 9/'009't56$

1Z0Z/0€/1T ybnosypn TZoe ozZoc 6107 *8T0Z £102 0Z0Z/TE/TT SNIPA DN

uondasuj duIg

w10l

ISni] 32ADIId

Isnd} equIoID

Isni] 26pamp)

1207/1¢/TT JO SB MIIAIY UONNLISI(] 1oAY UNgaUUy JO UMO],



0€0 3 9
L
ov'o
ov 8
0s°0 6
o))
0s
09°0 11
4!
040 09 €T
onoy-A dWH (%) onpy |oudp) 03 3q9q 11 (%) Ip3dn) pa3saAu| uo uiniay
G 80 14!
. o1
0z 0T
. 81
T
g¢ 074
' 77
0] .
971 vz
S€ 3T 9¢
(%) onpy noAnd puapiaig (%) PI9IA puaplaiQ (x) ooy sbuiuiog 0y 3dud
00s d3s |} 1D .
S0 850 ORPY-A
2oud Jo ainspaw b 3sulbbp Apnb jo uonpwixoiddo uo . - (9%) 1ondb?) 03 199q Wisy Buc
Buiybram Aq sainpay asayy saindond oibY-A S,U0sAbd WH “sulnial q nio
. . 9 1dp7) paIsaAu| uo u
wi33-buo| [ppuayod pedupyua Ja0 ‘UOIIDN|DA PIDMO) Yonoiddo ¢8 0t (%) 1Puded p1 ! ats
paulldIdStp B YUM pauiquiod ‘SOIISLIIODIDYD 3S3Y} PUnolD Pajoni3suod 6c ve (%) onoy InoAnd
soljojod 103 3ABIAY IAA “BWI} JBA0 WU0HRdIN0 0} PUS) UOKDIO||D €1 <l (%) PISIA PUspIAIQ
[oadoD A|pusiy-1ap|oyaloys yum saiundwod ajgojijold AjJuUa3sisuor) ¥'1e 8’67 (x) sbujuip3 03 3014
loudo) o101 / (SPUSPIAIG - SBUILIBI) =  DIOY 00s d78S  3us!D Aibwwing sosURIDYD
oliby sbujuing-o3-aosuy
= ORDY-A
PISIA pusplAlg + D10Y 120Z ‘IE Joqwisoaq :Jo sb sBUIp|oH

ﬂow\mﬁmzm JHOANNGINNIN 40 NMOL



(P¥7 ‘witdnoln) 3oubuly paljddy Syl jo Yipwapna]) asbg [P)dDD 3AINPO.d S LI D JO 94 D SO 1J0Id dIWOoU0dT] = UIBIDJ diouod]

UpIPS|A X3apu| Uy} Ja3oa16 St an|pA

%E'8T %Z'ST oljojH0d/X3pu| 00S d8Se WD =
%% 0 %9'C SaIInN S3ALNLLN
%6'C %E'S S|pLIDIDIN SIVIHILYIN
%8'S %E'E 330353 [03Y 31v1S31v3ad
%8'€- %9'/~ ABisuz ADHANT
%TCT %9'GT sa|dmys Jawnsuo) SITdVLS HIWNSNOD
%LTT %6'E %80T %80T s|pISNpu| STVIMLSNANI
VN %T'ST %6, %08 S32IAIRS UODOIUNWIWOY SIATIAHIS NOILLVYIINNNINGD
%181 %6'TT %T0 %E'T s|puDUl4 SIVIDNWNIAL
%0Q'8T %6'ST %Y'ET %0'ET 3107 YyoaH YV HLTYIH
%1'8 %9'G %9 %I'S AipuonaJasiq Jawnsuo?) AHVYNOILIHDSIQ H3IWNSNOD
%¥'ST %6°0C %y ¥ %6'GT ABojouyd3 | uonpwLIoU| ADOTONHIIAL NOLLYWHOANI
PAE ESE LA A Te}t! wyUIBIDIN 53955V RORELS
%0¥ %02 %0
dlwouod3 o4y,  2lqibup] uo uinay UORDOLJISIDAIC 10)99S

pa3ybia oljopiod SoN|DA URIPIN XIPU| 005 dBS

—— TZ0Z ‘I€ 4aqwuada :jo sb sbBulpjoH
gow\nﬁmgm LHODINNGINNTDA 40 NMOL



%T LYy %8 ViZ %9V %8S %882  %E’L X3apu] 005 d8S

%9T¥  %EO0L 86L %88  %LOL %6'€T %Tl 01|0j110d 2038 |ejo)
%G'TE  %EO0L 9CZ  %ELL  %EOL %LEZ %0 %L'Sh $3203§ 0} do}
%S'LL  %FLy €€8 %8l %ZSL  %8IZ  %L0 %ZE s|eloueuld woY ouj [eqolD d’8S
%CZ9 %88 S§TC  %ES  WOES %VSS %ST  %beE ABojouyos ] uoneuLoyu] SUS pepwI] woopeo.g
%E0S  %ZS LT %PE %E9  %ZLZ %LZ  %¥eE aleQ yjeaH uoesodiod yiesH SAD
%6'GE  %6'EL  00S %992 %08  %lv  %Z0  %LE ale) yyeaH OU] SNUBIOS JOYS!4 oWIBY L
%0'0E  %9SL 69  %L0 %9 %0V %SZT  %6'E aleD yjeoH uoSuYor g uosuyor
%vZE  %¥SL 821 %06 %L'9  %LVE %LT  %BE aleD yyesH ou| Jezyd
%EZL %96l 68E  %EL %66 %Y %60  %6'E ABojouyos | uojewIo| V 19 SUS puejal] 3ld INjUSIDY
%YZE  %8VZ LVE %8OS  %L6  %ZSZ  %l0 %S ABojouyoa | uonewo| d10D YosoIN
%P0z %Y 9V %leh AN %00 %00 %09 sjeoueuld g 10 AemeyeH aysyiog
%S'6  %6LZ 6SC  %L0Z AN %00 %00 %P8  SOJIAISS UOHEDIUNWWOD 300]S [eyde) O sseld ouj Jeqeydly
lendeg oy 010 3/d WMol  pmoig noked PpIBIA  IuBlam 10)09g Auedwo)
19eQ 11 SdIJAS AIQIAS

sbuipjoH jsebieT gL - sonsusoeIey) Yo01S

s — 1202 ‘IE 19qw22g :Jo so sBulp|oH
UOSABJINH Eon_v_z:mmzzm_v_"_ozgoh



1202 'TE Jaqwadaq jo sy

"AQV WIo DS o Jo
T 1B Ul PaqLIISIp 918 $39] AIOSIAPY "SUINIDI JUSTIISIAUT 9INPT [[IM IPIYM ‘S99j AIOSIADE JUSULSIAUL JO UOKINPIP 31 19[J2I 10U Op SN $S01H AUy

"pazifenuue aIe Iead suo uey) 93U I0f SLMIaI pue ‘Swodul pue afuep Tedpund [[B Jo S10950 S IpNPUT SUINISI [V
"S)TNS3I AN JO IANRDIPUIL JOU ST IJUBULIOJMBd 15Bq *$99] JUSWASLUBW JO 19U 10 SS018 3q UBD SUINIa1 JUNOIIY

*SISe(q [ENIdOR UR UO SWIT)SI JUNOJOE Y} Ul PapR[OU] ST SUIODUT PUe SISeq 3)Bp Spel} B UO SI BIEp JUN0ddY

SOUNSOJISI

UoSARJ INTY L1HOdMINNEIANNIN 40 NMOL



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 5

KENNEBUNKPORT FIRE DEPARTMENT

To: Laurie Smith
Board of Selectman
From: John Everett
Re: Purchase of ANSI certified Class 2 Jackets

I am requesting approval to purchase thirty (30) ANSI certified Class 2 Jackets to be issued to the
membership. The number of coats requested does not cover all personnel but covers the personnel that respond
the most often. These coats have a replaceable name tag so they can be re-issued as personnel change.

The main reason for the request is to keep our personnel safe. All calls the FD responds to involve the
roadways in town in one fashion or another. Many times, our first responders arrive on a scene in their personal
vehicles. Having this garment either already on or readily accessible, can protect the responder when visibility
is compromised, and drivers are not paying as close attention to the road as they should.

These jackets are manufactured by 5.11 Tactical Gear. They have an excellent track record for quality.
The garments have a zip in winter liner. The removable liner allows our members to use the jackets most of the
year. The jackets are made with a high visibility outer shell that meets ANSI, (American National Standards
Institute) class 2 safety vest. In essence the jacket will protect the responders by keeping them visible and warm
and dry, something a traffic vest does not do.

I have included pricing from a local vendor and two online vendors. Each vendor has priced the exact
same garment. Since the online vendors do not offer to silk screen “KPFD” on the back of the coats or provide
the name tags I have added the local vendor costs for those items to the internet costs as a comparison. A second
local vendor was asked to provide pricing and has not responded to my inquiry.

Bergeron Protective Clothing U.S. Patriot Fire Penny
Coat $277.22 $325.00 $299.95
Silk Screen § 9.86 $ 9.86 $ 9.86
Name Plate $ 18.00 $ 18.00 $ 18.00
Total $305.08 $352.86 $327.81

All three vendors had an upcharge for 3XL AND 4XL sizes.
$ 45.00 $ 50.00 $35.00

3X1.’s and 4X1.’s $350.08 $412.18 $362.81
If Needed

[ request approval to purchase 30 coats with the silk screening and name plates for Bergeron Protective
Clothing in the amount of $9,323.40 The total price includes up to 4 coats that will have the larger size
upcharge.



KENNEBUNKPORT FIRE DEPARTMENT

I would like to pay for these coats by using some current FY22 budget funds and some carry forward
funds from FY21. I asked to carry forward funds from three different line-item accounts from FY21 to FY22.
These accounts were Training, Personnel Protective Equipment and Uniforms. The PPE and Uniform line were
carried forward specifically to purchase these coats. The Training line was carried forward to cover expenses in
our Physicals line. During FY21 it appeared due to a change at Workwell that we were going to be paying a
much higher amount than anticipated for our compliance with Maine’s respiratory protection law and the
mandated medical questionnaire reviews. Fortunately, this has not materialized. I will maintain just over
$2,000.00 in carry over funds in the Physicals line for any increases over the remainder of the current fiscal
year.

Funds from FY21
Line Carry Forward Amount Amount used for purchase
Training $4,635.00 $2,600.00
PPE $4,580.00 $4,580.00
Uniform $ 400.00 $ $400.00

Carry over Total $7,580.00

Funds from FY22
FY22 PPE $1,543.40 $1,543.40
FY22 Uniforms $ 200.00 $ 200.00

Total $1,743.40

Carry over Total $7,580.00
FY 22 Total $1,743.40
Grand Total $9,323.40

Based on the pricing I was seeing on the internet; I asked our local vendor to quote 28 coats. The pricing
from Bergeron Protective Clothing allows for the purchase of 30 coats with the same budget figure.



12/29/21, 2:04 PM 5.11 Tactical Responder High-Visibility Parka

Try the MyUniform Builder for the Easiest and Most Accurate Uniform Customization!

| SEARCH Q A

N LR

U.Ss.
PATRIOT

HOME / APPAREL / OUTERWEAR / JACKETS / 5.11 TACTICAL RESPONDER HIGH-VISIBILITY PARKA

§.11 TACTICAL

5.11 TACTICAL RESPONDER HIGH-VISIBILITY PARKA

ITEM #: 48073-724-XL

$325.00
YT e e o

hnps:llwww.uspatﬁottactical.comls.11-taclical-responder—high—visibility-parkal48073-724-XL.html?gclid=Cj0KCQiAqTCOBhCZARIsANsPATFQiVquka... 1/4



12/29/21, 4;20 PM 5.11 Responder High-Visibility Parka

Shop By Brand v & MY ACCOUNT

HREPENNY (https://firepenny.com/)s

TIREFIGHTLCR COUIPMENT

Home (https:/ffirepenny.com/) » Shop All (https:/ffirepenny.com/shop-all) » Apparel (htips:/ffirepenny.convapparell)

» Hi Vis (htps:/flirepenny.com/hi-vis/)
» 5.11 Responder High-Visibility Parka {https://firepenny.com/5_11_Responder_High_Visibility_Parka_p/ZZ-KW-5-48073477L.htm)

L/ /4

Someane recently
Bracket
(https:/firepenny.c
1003-HD.him)

5.11 TACTICAL (HTTPS://FIREPENNY.(

17 minutes ago, frc

5.11 Responder High-Visibility
$299.95

: -KW-5-48073477L
sku = (https://firepenny.com/PAC_Toolok_HD_Bracket_p/PAC-

Shipping: Calculated at Checkout 1003-HD.htm)

SHOW SIDEBAR
Choose Coioi: Rrequired +

Choose Uptions
hitps:/ffirepenny.com/5_11_Responder_High_Visibility_Parka_p/2Z-KW-5-48073477L.him?gclid=Cj0KCQiAq7COBhC2ARISANSPATEV_UTNvcBLYSd... 1/5



QUOTATION
BERE‘Eﬁl]N No. : [210226 |

PROTE. E CLOTHING

Doc. Date : 12/27/2021
Payment Terms : NET30
1024 Suncook Valley Hwy., Unit 5-D Valid Untit:  03/31/2022
Epsom NH, 03234 Customer PO:

TEL: 603.736.8500
www.BergeronProtectiveClothing.com

a limited liability company

Salesperson : Dale Doughty
Page: Page1of1

Bill To Ship To:

Kennebunkport Fire Dept. Dick Stedman

Dick Stedman 32 North St

PO Box 505 Kennebunkport ME 04046-0404
32 North Street

Kennebunkport ME 04046

5.11 Responder Parkas - Range Red

Quantity Style Description Your Cost
28 5-48073-477-G  5.11 Men's Responder Hi Viz Parka, Range Red 7,762.16
1 5-48073-4773X  5.11 Men's Responder Hi Viz Parka, 3XL
Option: Add $45 for Sizes 3XL and 4XL (If neaded)

1 SETUP Set Up Charge - Screen Printing 45.00
28 SSCREEN Silk Screening Per Print 231.00
28 NAMETAPE  Name Tape for Embroidery 280.00
28 EMB-RS Embroidery - Name (only) on Supplied Name Tape 224.00

Subtotal 8,542.16
Total 8,542.16

*Notice: Products marked as ‘Contains PFAS Chemicals' are considered notification; pursuant to NH Law 154:8-¢ Firefighting PPE. Financing options
availabia on turnout gear purchases. Prices quoted do not include shipping and handling. Shipping is FOB factory. This quota is based on current
prices, subject to change by Manufacturer without notice. TERMS NET 30 Days. Add 3% fee when paying via credit card, Exchanges may incur
additionat handling charges, Late fee 2% per mo. $25 returned check fee MC/ Visa /Discover accepted.



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 6

Memorandum

To: Board of Selectmen

Fr: Laurie Smith, Town Manager
Denise Brown, Finance Director

Re: FY 23 — FY 27 Capital Improvement Plan

Dt: January 7, 2022

What is a Capital Plan?

> A Capital Improvement Plan is a financial planning and management tool that lists proposed
capital projects and capital purchases and is one of the most important responsibilities of local
government officials.

> This 5-year plan identifies, coordinates, and prioritizes the need for improvements and
purchases and coordinates the funding and time frames for completion.

» |t also provides continuity to the repair, replacement, construction and/or expansion of
Kennebunkport facilities and puts a focus on preserving our infrastructure while ensuring the
efficient use of public funds.

In conjunction with the review and update of departmental objectives and preparation of the
departmental annual budgets, each department is required to identify and submit capital project
requests to the Town Manager. Departments Directors are urged to carefully assess their capital
needs regarding vehicles and equipment, buildings and facilities, and infrastructure to encourage
long-range planning instead of short-term, stopgap, or “emergency” repairs or rehabilitation work.

2
R 20d

Staff have compiled, to the best of their knowledge, a complete list of capital needs.

&
9t

While exact costs are hard to provide for future purchases, best estimates were used to
prepare this plan. Construction costs have increased exorbitantly and continue to remain
high.

% There are a variety of funding sources that include:

Operating Budget
Reserve Funds
Bonding

Trust Funds
Grants

Private Sources

AN NN RN

The five-year CIP is just shy of $31 million and includes equipment, buildings, and infrastructure. On the
surface this funding level appears daunting if it were to be covered solely by Kennebunkport taxpayers.
The goal of planning for capital expenses is to take advantage of opportunities from grants, reserve
funds, and private partners to keep the Town current with capital needs.

Capital assets are defined, by the Town of Kennebunkport, as assets with a cost of $10,000 or more and
a useful life in excess of one year.

Page 1of 7



5-Year CIP
by Funding Source

Budget
Trust Fund
$660,000 $6,910,600
Grant
$3,750.000
“\
Reserve
$2,248,000
Bond
$13,830,000

Administration:

Records preservation is an ongoing item which prolongs the usable life of our archival records. Is it worth
the investment? What does the future hold? We see changes daily in new and improved technology,
cloud-based storage options and electronic access to everything. However, we can be sure that
accessing the tangible records from the incorporation of the Town in the 1800s, to the establishment of
the KKW Water District in the early 1900s, and the Selectman’s first vote to allow the sale of liquor to our
beloved restaurants in the 1970s, will forever remain the most reliable tool for accurate historical
information.

The largest cost in administration is the construction of a new town hall. The need for a new Town Hall
began over 20 years ago with the design for a combined Fire Station and Town Hall on North Street.
Unfortunately, that did not move forward, and the Town Hall at Elm Street was renovated. It is estimated
that the current needs are approximately 8,000 sq ft or 60% greater than the current building. The new
facility would encompass a public meeting space, office space for all staff, storage for equipment and
records, and adequate room to serve the public. The meeting room space becomes particularly important
when the Village Fire Station is renovated to provide for staffing space.

The first step in the process would be the final design and engineering for the new facility. The projected
timeline shows the potential construction completion would be 2025.

Page 2 of 7



Town Hall

* Summer2024

Design Move to Town
Budget Design Complete Hall
& Engineering Begin Spring/summer
Construction fall 2025
23/Spring 24

Village Fire Station

/ » Begin Complete
3ugggfn'?egg'§; Construction Construction
Summer spring 2026

2025

Fire Department:

Equipment purchases in the next five years include a rigid inflatable boat to replace a 20-year-old boat
that leaks air constantly and is one of two boats we operate. Fortunately, the engine will be able to be
re-used on the new boat. Additional equipment needs include a brush truck to replace a 1980 vehicle, a
new engine to replace a 26-year-old vehicle, and a ladder truck. As the department looks to the future of
fire service in Kennebunkport, we are examining the best use of staffing and equipment for efficient and
effective calls for service. As part of that analysis, we will be recommending the reduction in the number
of vehicles — this will bring us from two ladder trucks to one, and from three brush trucks to two. Our goal
is to minimize the expense to the taxpayers by purchasing a ladder and engine in the same year to
realize bulk purchasing discounts. We will also reuse the existing tank and pump for the brush truck
replacement. The Town has reserved funding each year in the apparatus sinking fund, which together
with the Kittredge Trust fund account should not cause a burden on the taxpayers.

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) is an annual purchase of 7-8 sets of turnout gear, which includes a
coat and pants. This replacement program replaces our interior qualified firefighters gear every 10 years.
Any gear that is still worthy is then recycled to our non-interior firefighters. Helmets, boots, gloves, etc.
come out of the PPE line in the operating budget.

In accordance with National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) standards, the Self-Contained Breathing
Apparatus (SCBA) need to be replaced every 25 years. The Town has been setting aside funds in a
reserve account for this purchase.

The largest item in the Fire Department capital plan is the renovation to the Port Village station. The
Town has successfully met the fire service needs of our community for many years by the use of
volunteers or on-call firefighters. As we have discussed with the Board previously, the days of hiring per
diem firefighters is around the corner. Training demands, commuting patterns for residents, and the need
for available staff during the daytime hours will require the Town to eventually hire per diem staff. In order
to accommodate these staff and the necessary equipment to continue fire call times we need to renovate
our main station to accommodate overnight staff, offices, and room for additional equipment. The
construction costs are currently estimated at $1.5 million in order to add approximately 2,000 sq ft and
renovate another 1,000 sq ft.

Page 3 of 7



Parks and Recreation:

The zero turn mowers are used to maintain parks and fields. The newest one was scheduled to be
replaced in 2020 and is currently over 11 years old. Staff uses the newest mower for our main recreation
area (Parsons field) and the old one for the disc course.

As we look towards the future of our parks and recreation areas, staff is recommending a Parks Master
Plan for Parsons Field, Firefighter's Park and Village Parcel. The master plan will engage the public in
determining not only the recreational needs of each facility, but what equipment and uses make the most
sense in each of these neighborhood parks. Once the master plan is developed, we would complete the
implementation in phases using public, private, and grant funding opportunities.

Currently Firefighters Park is seeing much more activity due to the installation of the mailboxes. Due to
the amount of vehicular traffic, staff are recommending paving the entrance and parking area of the park.
The cost is estimated at $30,000.

Our current 14-passenger recreation bus is scheduled for replacement in 2025. Staff continue to
examine programming needs and will examine the best options for the eventual replacement of the bus.

Piers:

The largest item in the pier capital plan is the reconstruction of the Cape Porpoise Pier. Staff are awaiting
final word from the Economic Development Administration (EDA) that the Town will be receiving a $2
million grant to rebuild the pier. The EDA funding combined with Maine DOT small harbor improvement
program (SHIP) funds will allow the project to move forward in the fall of 2022,

The Chowder House building is owned by the Town and leased to a vendor. Due to recent concerns of
water intrusion at three of the doors, a more in-depth assessment was completed to identify other
concerns. Staff have identified the need to replace the dining area entrance door, two exterior public
restroom doors, exterior flashing, some framing and sheathing and interior paneling, the gutter system,
and the exterior staircase to the storage area above the restaurant.

The Harbormaster boat currently runs off a 12-gallon above deck tank which allows for 3 hours of run
time. Originally the boat had twin below deck tanks and the intent of this request is to restore the boat to
its original spec and performance which will allow longer run time to monitor issues in the Harbor and
surrounding areas without needing to refuel as frequently.

The current spare hoist is an eight foot per minute hoist which is extremely slow and does not work for
the fishermen using the pier. A proper speed replacement would allow full functionality of our facility even
when a primary hoist goes down. There are periodic replacements of hoists over the next 5 years as they
are items that wear in the harsh environment.

Staff recommend the acquisition of a small outboard skiff to replace the eight foot plastic rowboat used
by the Harbormaster to work around the pier and to access the Harbormaster boat on its mooring. This
will provide a safer and more practical means of transport for pier work and mooring access.

Police:

The police department long-term capital plan includes the usual replacement of police vehicles. We will
continue the process of looking at hybrid and or electric vehicles and incorporate them into our operation.

Building maintenance items include the replacement of the HVAC system and glycol fire suppression
system. The cooling system was initially designed for a much smaller building back in 1998. The current

Page 4 of 7



system is continually overworked, which causes frequent breakdowns and costly repairs. The old glycol
fire suppression system needs to be updated due to new government regulation. The old antifreeze must
be drained, disposed of, and replaced.

The department is also planning for the replacement of all officer sidearms and holsters as the current
inventory will be greater than twelve years old. Industry standard is to replace an officer’s firearm every
10 years.

The law enforcement records management software (Central Square) is over 20 years old and will need
to be updated or replaced by the end of this 5-year plan.

Public Works:

The Town maintains over 48 miles of roads and 6.4 miles of sidewalks. The Town’s capital plan includes
paving, reconstruction, and maintenance to preserve the infrastructure foundation in our community.
FY23 will include 2.3 miles of road rehabilitation including Old Cape Road, Stone Road, Belgrade
Avenue, half of Beachwood Avenue, and half of Oak Ridge Road. The Sidewalk work will be focused on
Pearl Street and Ocean Avenue (from Seagrass to Green St) in FY23.

The equipment replacement plan was pushed out during 2020 due to COVID. As a result, the 2004
tandem axle truck was just replaced this year. The 2011 five-ton truck is beginning to show concerns with
corrosion similar to the recent 2004 tandem axle truck that would no longer pass State inspection
standards. The frame rails are starting to show the early sign of separation. Due to the current 18-month
lead time on trucks, if ordered in July of 2022, we would not see this truck until the 2023/2024 winter.
Therefore, the current 2011 will still have to remain in service for at least two more winters. By that time,
we expect to see serious corrosion concerns that will not allow the truck to pass State Inspection.

The Town had to dispose of the 2003 GMC Sierra due to frame rot as well. (Same time as the 2004
tandem axle.) As a result, we have not replaced this truck and are currently down a vehicle. We would
like to replace the 2009 F-350 2WD DRW truck with a new F-350 4WD DRW one-ton dump truck and
keep the 2009 F-350 in the rotation as a replacement for the 2003 GMC Sierra.

Special Projects:

This group of projects are usually classified as “special projects” as they don't fall within normal
departmental operations. The five-year plan captures issues relative to climate change, the development
of the Village Parcel, and changes in service delivery.

In 2013 the Town identified the need to rebuild a portion of Pier Road known as the causeway due to
flooding concerns. At the time the estimated construction costs were about $800,000. Over the years we
have continued to see flooding impact the publics ability to access the Cape Porpoise Pier and private
properties. The planned investment at Cape Porpoise Pier will require access via Pier Road and it seems
prudent to begin the necessary work. FY23 will require funding to finalize engineering as well as
permitting for road reconstruction. Staff have put a placeholder figure in the FY24 budget for
construction, but updated costs through the engineering process wili be necessary. The construction
project may be eligible for new climate change funds through the American Rescue Plan, but that is
uncertain at this time.

Originally the Comprehensive Plan project was scheduled to be completed by June 2021. An extension
to the current comprehensive planning contract may be necessary to complete the project. Data updates
and additional committee meetings may be necessary due to the delays forced by COVID-19.

Page5 of 7



As part of the examination of Climate Change, Town staff are recommending a planning process
particularly focused on the impacts of sea level rise on Town infrastructure and private property along the
Kennebunk River, in Cape Porpoise, and at Goose Rocks Beach.

The current waste removal contract with Casella expires in August 2024. Due to continued labor
shortages, regulations on hours worked by truck drivers, and technology changes in the industry, staff
recognize that the new contract will likely be an automated system. This will require the purchase of
uniform bins to be distributed to the public to conform with an automated waste pick up system.

The lighting committee is currently examining various fixtures to replace our current streetlights. The
challenge is the price difference between a “platter fixture” and a “cobra head” light. Currently the price
difference between the two is about $1,000 which could equate to an additional $175,000 in fixtures. The
committee plans to judge public acceptance of the newer lights in a few strategic locations.

The Village Parcel project is the largest investment the Town has made in many years. The Selectmen
appointed a committee and undertook a public process which resulted in the Village Parcel Vision in
2020. The plan identified the following priorities:

» Provide for future town essential services, including municipal facilities to enhance the
Kennebunkport experience.

Include design principles of traditional neighborhoods found in Kennebunkport's village area.
Parcel should flow as an extension of Kennebunkport’s adjacent villages.

Maintain Kennebunkport’'s small-town character.

Encourage safe vehicular traffic and pedestrian connectivity.

Provide for future multigenerational needs.

YV V V ¥V V VY

Establish mixed uses that complement the needs of the community and each other.
» Encourage passive recreational opportunities.

In order to accomplish these goals, the parcel needs the appropriate zoning, and the Town may wish to
consider a form-based approach to zoning for this particular area. The Town also needs to plan for the
construction of infrastructure to garner partnerships to support the other goals. Staff is recommending
that the Town plan to invest in necessary infrastructure for the Town Hall and seek private investment
and grant opportunities to continue infrastructure into the parcel.

Vote on
Zoning

Budget for
Consultant

Page 6 of 7



Wastewater:

The wastewater system includes not only a treatment plant, but also over 20 miles of sewer lines and 17
pump stations. The Town needs to continue to invest in this infrastructure as much of it has reached its
useful life. In the five-year CIP staff are recommending the design and reconstruction of three pump
stations to include Ocean Avenue, Turbat’s Creek and South Main Street stations.

The replacement of two mixers at the plant are on the list as they are in excess of 20 years old. At this
age, they are well beyond their life expectancy. The current mixers/motors are designed to be
submerged and operate in a harsh environment. Because of this, they require increased maintenance
due to water infiltration. Two years ago, we lost one due to water infiltration and had to have it rebuilt at a
cost of approximately $7,600. The proposed replacement mixer design elevates the motor and gearbox
above the water line and requires a simple annual gearbox oil change which can be completed without
their entire removal, unlike the current submersible design.

5-Year CIP
by Department

Wastewater
$6,960,000
Fire
$3,995,000
Special Projects
$6,975,000 Piers Parks & Rec
$2,799,000 $470,000
Public Works
$4,310,000 ' Police

$464,600

In summary, this plan is ultimately meant to serve as a long-term planning and management tool that
provides a list of proposed capital improvement projects and purchases for a 5-year period. This will not
only serve as a guide to plan for these types of expenditures, but it will also give our citizens the ability to
see how the Town is spending tax-payers dollars as it pertains to the maintenance, upkeep, and
improvement of Town owned property, equipment, facilities and infrastructure.

We are seeking feedback from the Selectmen on the staff recommendations, especially for the upcoming
fiscal year. :

Page 7 of 7



A & o R N

—— Sy ———— — ENGINEERING, INC. ——
Town of Kennebunkport August 25, 2021
Attn: Eric Labelle Revised January 5, 2022

P.O. Box 566
6 Elm Street
Kennebunkport, ME 04046

Subject: Town'’s Village Parcel
Updated Opinion of Probable Cost

Eric,

Acorn Engineering, Inc. (Acorn) is pleased to submit the attached Opinion of Probable Cost (OPC)
for the Town of Kennebunkport’s Village Parcel to construct the road and all associated utilities
from North Street to Parcel D as described in the provided Vision Study. In coordination with
Grondin Corporation, the OPC is based upon the previously approved plans that were provided and
factors in work to date that has already been completed associated with future road construction
project. The updated OPC includes removal of the previously proposed pump station and forcemain
connection and includes additional infrastructure that will be required to make the gravity sewer
connection into the existing sanitary manhole located within North Street, as well as a 3%
adjustment for inflation. As discussed, we have also included a cost for future construction
administration services and the OPC includes a contingency for unforeseen changes to the plans or
price increases from 2021 to when the project goes out to bid after final design. Along with the
previously provided cost proposal to develop construction plans, specification documents and bid
administration, we understand these total costs will be utilized for a Town referendum vote.

Acorn Engineering, Inc. appreciates the opportunity to work with the Town of Kennebunkport in
preparation of this Opinion of Cost and look forward to the potential next phase of developing the
construction plans and seeing this project through final construction. Please let us know if you have
any questions or comments.

Sincerely,
Peter F. Heil, P.E. William H. Savage, P.E.
Project Manager Principal

Acorn Engineering, Inc. Acorn Engineering, Inc.



B - &\__

VILLAGE PARCEL
Sta. 99+50 - 122+00
1/5/2022
ltem # Item Description Bid Value

01000 GENERAL CONDITIONS $284,000.00
02100 SITE PREPARATION $2,000.00
02205 EARTHWORK $418,000.00
02210 ELECTRICAL $115,000.00
02270 EROSION CONTROL $211,000.00
02514 PAVEMENT $486,000.00
02525 CURB $203,000.00
02600 WATERLINE $167,000.00
02700 SANITARY SEWER $259,000.00
02720 STORM DRAINAGE $36,000.00
02800 SITE IMPROVEMENTS $291,000.00
02900 LANDSCAPING $16,000.00
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION $30,000.00
SUBTOTAL $2,518,000.00
CONTINGENCY (15%) $377,700.00
TOTAL $2,895,700.00

OPC Sta. 99+50-122+00_1-5-22



A—C— 0O — R ——N—

= ENGINEERING, INC. ——
Town of Kennebunkport August 25, 2021
Attn: Eric Labelle
P.O. Box 566

6 Elm Street
Kennebunkport, ME 04046

Subject: Town’s Village Parcel
Opinion of Probable Cost

Eric,

Acorn Engineering, Inc. (Acorn) is pleased to submit the attached Opinion of Probable Cost (OPC)
for the Town of Kennebunkport’s Village Parcel to construct the road and all associated utilities
within the Right of Way from North Street to Parcel D as described in the provided Vision Study. In
coordination with Grondin Corporation, the OPC is based upon the previously approved plans that
were provided and factors in work to date that has already been completed associated with future
road construction project. As discussed, we have also included a cost for future construction
administration services and the OPC includes a contingency for unforeseen changes to the plans or
price increases from 2021 to anticipated Spring 2022 bid requests after final design. Along with the
previously provided cost proposal to develop construction plans, specification documents and bid
administration, we understand these estimate costs will be utilized for a Town referendum vote.

Acorn Engineering, Inc. appreciates the opportunity to work with the Town of Kennebunkport in
preparation of this Opinion of Cost and look forward to the potential next phase of developing the
construction plans and seeing this project through final construction. Please let us know if you have
any questions or comments.

Sincerely,
Peter F. Heil, P.E. William H. Savage, P.E.
Project Manager Principal

Acorn Engineering, Inc. Acorn Engineering, Inc.



Gfmgy CA:IGINEERING INC
VILLAGE PARCEL
Sta. 99+50 - 122+00
8/25/2021
ltem # Item Description Bid Value

01000 GENERAL CONDITIONS $324,000.00
02100 SITE PREPARATION $2,000.00
02205 EARTHWORK $406,000.00
02210 ELECTRICAL $112,000.00
02270 EROSION CONTROL $205,000.00
02514 PAVEMENT $471,000.00
02525 CURB $198,000.00
02600 WATERLINE $162,000.00
02700 SANITARY SEWER $779,000.00
02720 STORM DRAINAGE $35,000.00
02800 SITE IMPROVEMENTS $283,000.00
02900 LANDSCAPING $15,000.00
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION $30,000.00
SUBTOTAL $3,022,000.00
CONTINGENCY (15%) $453,300.00
TOTAL $3,475,300.00

OPC Sta. 99+50-122+00_8-25-21



000°'05$ 196png 2JnjonIselut s|iel] |eoted abe|ia

000'G. $ JeIHnebpng ainjonaselu| € aseyd sanuswy yied

000'SL $ Jebpng usidinb3 sng 6|0z eoe|dey

Ooo,m\. w Em._mu\«mm_uzm 24nonnseu) ¢ 9Skeld salluswy Mied

00062 $ weioabpng ainyonsselu| ] 9seyd Sajiuawy jed

000'0¢ $ 196png aimoniselu| Buiney yied siawybuyeiy|

000'G. $ 1ebpng ulwpy - ue|d JolseN Sied|

000'GL ¢ EYSELEN juawdinby juswsoe|dal Jamop uin| 0187

a4nyng LZAd 92 Ad SC Ad ¥Z Ad €CAd Buipuny adAL uopesldsy @ siled
000°568C ¢ | 000'PZE $ 000°68 $ 000°72s'L ¢ 000°.66°'L $ o000'€OL $ | sjejol .

000006  $ | - - SINEEEN | juswdinbg o (2v02) 2102 mau - gyo ¢£¢ aulbug

000‘08 5 Hmm_u:m_l | juswdinb3 Jo0) 8nosal o::EEf

000'GE $ 19bpng juswdinb3 abeya - _oﬁ:mcmw

000'0L % B 1eBpng | juswdinby aM - Jojesaus)

000'006 $ | onesay | juswdinbg 6£02Z NI 30V1d3d MM €2 auibu3

000'00s S ﬁ\ o aAIasaY juawdinbg 8¢0¢7 mom_amw_ | 8007 MU GHO- | Yue W‘mwm_mwm

000'00F 3 [ emssay | juswdinb3 B LE0Z NI 30V 1d3d 9002 L1 penbg soejdey

000'0€ $ - emesey | Juswdinbg (8202) 8002 MeN - 0 - Jeliesyauibuseog aigejeyu) pibry

000’00  $ an@sey | juswdinbg (1207) (5¥) soed iy YEOS

000'vZ $ lebpng | juawdinb3 - 3dd J8ybyaiy|

000'29 $ 1ebpng awdinb3 (9202) 05 1-4 P10 GLOT - | JeD doe|day

‘ poo'zz % 1ebpng  juawdinbg Jdd JewByany

000'00S°L $ puog sapilioed/6pig uopeyg a1 abefiiA

| o00'cz % 1obpng juswdinbgy Jdd Jabyaiy

000'0SL $ 1ebpng ulwpy ubisaq uonels a4 abe|lin

000'0GL'L $ aniasay juswdinb3 Z0Z 2o8|doY - 6661 MU gD - v JoppeT] doejdey

| 000'zZ $ 1ebpng juawdinb3 D o 3dd 1aybyainy

000'¢€9  § - IsnuL uswdinbg ¥20Z N1 30V1d3d Ad 2661 - 21 auibug aoedey

. 000'59 $ oanesey | uswdinb3 DD 0861 G€ usnug aoejdey

~ [ooo'oz. s efpng | juswdinby 3dd Jawbya.y

000'81 $ SISEECH] I swdinbl £00Z Mau - Y9 - Jsjiely/aulbusjeog s|gelelu| pIbry

aimny LZAd 9z Ad SZ Ad vZ A4 €ZTA4 Butpuny adA) 2114

000'0¢2  $ 000°S $ | 000'S $ 000°s ¢ 000'50S'v $ | 000'sOF  § s|ejoy e

ooo.oﬁ $ | 18bpng uwipy uoleAlasald sploday

000'0g $ | 18Bpng ! wawdinbg 3I01Y3A SOPOD tomwmﬂwﬂumm

000G $ | _ webpng uIwpy uoneAIasald SPi0dSY

"ooo0's $ - 1ebpng | uwpy | UOBAISSAI SPI0oY

000G $ 196png uiwpy uoNeAISSaId SPiooay

000'00S'?  $ | puog | somioed/bpig UOIIONIISUOY [|BH UMO L.

000'S $ | 1obpng i ulpy o uoneAlssald spiooay

4 _ 00000y  $ 186png 7 WPy I o uBisaq leH Umol

000'S $ 196png _ uiwpy LOBAIDSBI] SPIooaY

alning LeAd 92 Ad GZ Ad ¥Z Ad €ZAd Buipungy adf| uonessiuilipy

weiboid juswaroiduy jejiden




SpEOJ JONNSU0a) pue Jieday
J3peoT Ar ¢£10z doejday
SHIEMBPIS JONIISUOD pue Lieday
SpEOJ JoNASU0D3) pue Jieday
ssapjoel] 200z 9oejdey
SH|EMBPIS JONIISUCD pue lieday
SPE0J JONJISU0Dal pue Jiedey
¥X¥ 05€-4 900¢ 90e|day
jeuoeuwIBu| Z1.0Z 9oe|doy
SY|eMaPIS 10NJ)SU0D pue Jleday

SpeoJ 19nJjsuUooal pue lieday
1By [enQ ¥XZ 05€-d 600Z edejday
|euoneuwiau) | 10z aoejdey

SHIEMBPIS JONJSU0D pue Jieday

SPEOJ JONIJSU003) pue Jleday

SH40M 21idnd

() 13sinin XxXz 9oejday

198D XXXz ooelday

(z) sJesInID 120z Pue 020z 22eiday
Jesinig 6102 2081doY |
Juawaoe|dey uodespn

18sinI) 810z aoe|dey

s1sindwon Jasinig aoe|doy
wswaoeday JYAH

speibdn sepunds
(2) siesinug £10z d9e|day

weiboid m:wEw\.o\QE\ jeyden

siandwion 1esiniy aoejday
adljod

jeog JejsewloqieH

Juswieoe|day }SIOH Z#
Juawaoe(day ISIOH 1#

siieday asNoH J9pMOyQ
wawese|day Aybuiq JeisewlogqieH

Juswaoe|dal }sioy atedg

sJald

SS900Y 1e0g 2lland

0008 % 196png alnjoniseiu)
000'06L  § 196png juatudinby
000'00L $ 196png ainonnselu)
ooo'orr % 196png aimpnnselu)
ooo'sez $ 19Bpng wawdinbg
000'G6 $ ] 196png aJmonJiselju;
ooo'tes ¢ 1e6png ainmponnselu)
000°09 $ 19bpng wawdinbg
ooo'ovz  $ }obpng justudinbg
00006  $ 196png ainjonsselu)
000'€ES  $ ~jebpng ainjon.jseu) -
1 000'02 $ 1eBpng wewdinby [
__loooegz  § ebpng  juswdinby
000'08 $ 19bpng ainjonyyseyul
“looo'zir S 1ebpng aimonyjseyu) |
aining LA 9¢ Ad GC Ad vZ Ad €ZAd Buipung adAL
00028 $ 0007z, $ 00028 _ $|000°7. ¢ oos'cs  $|008'6ZL § - sfejol
000°/8 $ i _ 1ebpng awdinbg
000'2¥ $ _ 0 1ebpng Juswdinbg
0006, ¢ ] T Jebpng | ewdinby | uswsaoeiday siemyos juswsbeuely spiooay aienbg [enuad
W o008  $ R 19bpng jwowdinby™ | il
o 0002  $ ] ebpng | uewdinby T
B L 000'sZ $ o ysniy | uawdinbg
0002y _ $1| i 1ofpng | uswdinby
- 008'9 $ Jebpng " juswdinb3
o  Tooo'sz % 196png sopoed/Bpig |
o 00021 $ 18bpng samjoed/bplg |
____jooo'es $ jebpng wawdinb3
008'9 $ 1e6png Juswdinb3
aanng LZAd 9Z Ad ST Ad ¥Z Ad €ZAd Butpuny adAL
0000¢  $| - $ | 00s‘s $| - $ | 00s's $ | 000'282'C § | | sfejol
000'0¢  $ ! _ T anasey Justudinbg
00S's  $| - o jebpng | juewdinby |
N 00S'S $ 196png juawdinby
i 000'0r _ $ 196png senjioe/6pig
000°¢ $ 1ebpng I juswdinb3
- | " Jo00'ses'z | wespenesey  semnoed/Bbplg pays Jeg pue Juswaoe|dey Jald asiodiod ade)
W 00S'S $| 1bpng juawdinbg
_ 005y $ 1obpng juswdinbg (Juswase|dey ue] |on4) Jeoq Jeiseuogiey
aimng IZAd 9Z Ad ST A4 vZ Ad €ZTAL Buipuny adA}
000'005  $|000'0S $ 000'SL  $ 000°0SL $ 0005,  $|000'0ZL §| srejo
000005  $ | | weiopebpng ainpnnselu)
| | | | |




0000z8 $
0000Z8  $
00005  $
00005  $
- 000'00L  $
000'008 $
000008
amning LZAd 92 Ad SZ Ad
poo‘00s‘s ¢ - $ 000'00§'c $| - $
| 0001005 $ L
ooo'oos'es ¢
nmng LEAd 92 Ad SC Ad
000°2£2°L $ 000889 $]0000€Z $ 000°LLLL §
0000z $
000052 $ o
000°GL $
000'G1L $ N
0002 $
000's¥z  $ | o
| 000'0LL  $
000'Z1 $
00009 $
0006, ¢ -
000052 $ . A
000'ste $ -
000's0L  $ | !

€1# uonels dwngd auen sbury aoejdey

%oni| eoIAag €102 aoelday

13]eMB)SEeA

Buiuue|d asiy |9AS7] BAS
awdojeraq uejd dwo?)
Aoijod Buluoz [@osed mmm:.>

syo9loid |eloadg

JaMO L Z0Z @oeiday

Jelg weisapn 1 z0z 2oeday

sdwng |an4 910z 22e|day

GCy 0OWA] 910z 9oelday

[euoeuau] 910z aoe|dey

|Buonewal| G |0z @oejday

puog ainpnnselu)
puog aInpPnsSBIU| y1# uonelg dwng Aemybiy sbury aoejdey
- puog uipy mc:wwc_mgozﬁw dwng sue sbuny soejday
puog ujwpy Bulssuibug-y | # uonels dwnd Aemubiy sbury) aoe|day
- - 1bpng ~~ swdinb3 T
o puog ainpnasenu; L L# uonelg diind "py S|y @oe|day
puog ainjonuselu) Z# uoneg duing aue S| aoeidey
000'0s _ $, puog uIpy
o00'0s & puog “unpy mc:mmc_mcm # co;m#w e)g duuing sue Sl 998|doy
oo0'oor & puog ainonnselu| c# uonelg duind 1S UIBl Yinog aoe|day
goo'oog  $ puog | eInoniselu| uonerg dungd %eain sjegint ade(day
000'008 & | puog | =ainponyjseyu ~_o# uolels duind "aay uesoQ adelday
100008 $ 18bpng [ aunpnnsesyu; SHUB] UONRISY Ul SIaXI|\ 90B(day
00005 $ puog uwpy BunsauiBbug-G# uonels dwing 13 utep ynog soe|day
T 000'%Ss ¢ puog | uwpy T BuussuiBug-uoneig dwind 9919 sjeqint soe|day
T TToooos $ puog _ ulwpy Butieaubug-g# uone)s duung "aAy ueasQ ade|dsy
¥Z Ad €ZAd Buipun 4 adA1
000°0£L'S | 000'SYE  § | | sfejo
S1BALd ainonnselu Z @sel ] sinoniseyu| [90ied abe|liA
- T sleAld —  aumjonnseyu] | | aseyd aJnjonnselu) [eoied abejia
000°00S I puog ainpnansenu| leH umo | -ainonselu| [@died wmm___>
000°00L 1ebpng ainjonJiseu| saimxid4 WybIpeeang g3 10 eseydingd
000°05¢2 B 1ebpng wawdinbg sujg UOROSj0D BISBAA PRIRWIOINY JO uolsinbay/|
000'082'2 puogauel  eimonngsenu] " SY|emapIS 1§ UOHONIISUOODY PROY Jald
000'0S $ 19bpng upy
- 000'0Z $ 1obpng unupy
~jooo's. 8 196png uwpy
| 000'002 $ 19bpng uIwpYy wc:wmc_m:m 9 Bujuueld Syjemapis B peoy Jald
vZ A4 €A Buipuny adA}
000°cz6  $ | 000'858 | sje3o
| 186png juswdinby |
19bpng juawdinbg
1ebpng yuswdinb3 Ja)jonuon |end Ja1seiand 0z0z a2elday
- 18bBpng wawdinbg |
pbpng — juswdinby | X 0SE4 Pio4 0Z0Z 29eIday
T w@ebpng awdinbg /LIN SSopioel) 810z ooejday|
B 19bpng jusudinb3 soyoeg 41 089S 9se) 810z 9oelday
12bpng | swdinbg ] Jadiig aur odeIg) /|0g eoejdoy
- 186png | juswdinbg
196png wawdinby | JB9Y fenq ¥X¥ 0GE- PI104 910z 90e|day
; 1ebpng wswdinbg
©bpng weawdinby |
- 1ebpng aJnonnselu) SHIEMBPIS 10NJ)SU0D pue Jeday
4
L

weiboid juswanoiduiy E:Qmp

|




_
|
1

E.Emmg.m juswsroidulf jeyded

|000'68L°2$  [00S°LSE9$  |000°099°V$  |00£'6v2ZLS |008'SYE'VS | [o09°g868°0c$ s|ejoL
= $ 000°005€ $ - $ $ - $ 000°00G'€ $ sjealld
- $ 00062 $ 000'se $ 000699t $ 000'se0'c $ 000'05L'E $ e
- $ $ 000'Ge $ o000'6ee ¢ - $ 000°'099 $ pungjsnil
000°000°L $ O0OO'OVL'L $ 000'002'€ $ O00'OFL'Z $ 000'05L & ooo‘ogg'el  § puog
000'00c  $ $ - $ 000'0SLL $ 00086L $ 000'8¥2'C $ ANI2SIY
000688 $ 005980k $ 000CL¥'L $ 00€'6SS’L ¢ 008'G96'L $ 009'016'9 $ 196png
IZXd 9ZAd STAd ¥z Ad €T Ad SIEoA § Buipung
000°68L°'2$  00S'LSE'9$  000°099'¥$  00g£'s¥LTLS  008°8v6'p$ 009'868°0E$ s|ejol
___jooo'esr’t ¢ ooo '662'6 $ | 000°18G' $ 000'8.6'G $ 000'2€9  § L[obol 600°9L  $ aJnjoniseyuj
- $ ~_$.000005°} $ 00000S¥ $ 000CLBZ $ 0002188 $ sajoe p sbuipjing
000'S $ 000's0L $[000'50L $ 000'55z $ '000G.6 $ L | o00'sHr'L ¢ uoNESIUILPY
000169 $ 00Sl6Y $ | 000P0S $ 00c'9lvy'c $ 00862 $ L | 009'2€9'y $ o juawdinbg
yr2e] SeAd | S WA €z Ad SIEdA S _9dAL
000°68L'T _$ 00S°1SE'9 $ | 000°099‘¢ $ 00S‘6vLTL § 008°8Y6'v $ 009'g68°0¢  $ sieyoL
ooo.ooo; $ 000098t $[000'008°L $ OcOOOLZ $jo000COZ $§ 000'096'9 3 isemasepn
| $ 000006'€ $| - $ 0000ck'c $ 000'SYE 000°G/6'9  $ spalold [eradg
. 000889 $ 000°0EL $ | io@b...,rlrlﬁrlw 000'¢z6  $ 000958 S | ooo'oke'r % SYIOM 2lIgnd
1 000zZZy ¢ 00048  $ | 000°T. § 008'€S w _$ oogezt $ 0099y sl 921104
$ o00ss | - $ 00S'S $ | 000'882'C ¢ 000'66.°C $ siald
000°0S $ 000GL $ | 000051 $ 000'S. $ ooo'ozl % 000'0L¥ $1 09y B Siled
| 00072€ $ 00068 $ | 000Z28't $ 000'.56°'L $ [ 000'€0L  $ 000666t $ a4
| 000'G $ 000G $ 1 000°S $ 000's0S'v $|000'GOv $ 000'526'Y $ uoneJsiuiupy
| ZgAd sZAd | STXd ¥ Ad €z Ad SIBOA § - juaunedag
000'S8Z°CL $ | 000681 $ 00S'1S€9 w | 000°099'¢ $ 00¢'6¥4'2L $ 008°8Y6Y $ IVLOL ANVYD
| 4

000'908'¢ $ | 000°000°L $ | 000°098‘L $ | 000°008°L $ [ 000°00L‘Z $ | 000°00Z § o
000'00L'Z & | puog aInjonJselju| saul Jamag g/61 S9lW 69 aoe|day
000’00 $ _ " puog aimoniselU| /1# ucnelg duing sinised plauoyep) aoe|dey
| 000'00€ $ puog 2JNoNJISBIU| 9l# uoneig dwnd pnod uoiBuiysepp 2oe|dey’
00000 $ ] o puog aimonnseyyl | GL# uonels dungd sauqQ Boosald mom_amm
00000L  $ 1ebpng Juswdinbg T Juswade|day dwng J1apuld
o0o'szl 3| 1e6png wewdinbg L LOZ Z0L# US2.2s aul} JagnH
000'SZ) $ ! 1ebpng juswdinby L1LOZ LOL# UD210S auly JagnH
000'G8 $ “ 1ebpng wawdinbg (z) sdwng mo|4 |exy aoeiday
000'12 $ A 196png wawdinb3 18X 3|qIsiawgng sde(day
000'00¢€ $ 7 - puog aJnjonuselu| (abpug 01 wnjueuoN) ulep AHIABIS) aAy uead( aoe|day
000'000°L $ 7 puog apnnseyuy z1# uonelg dwng AemyBiy sBury aoe|dey
L 7 toocoor $ ! puog uIwpy BullsauBug-z | # uonels dwng kemybiy sburj soejdey
000'0ZL  $ | 19bpng wswdinb3 Japar 9oz oeldey




. _-

ueld uawaAoidw| jeude)

~ £691 AALVIOdUOINI -

ANIVALIOdINNIINNIMIONMO L



'Spuny 211gnd Jo asn juaIdie ayl ulnsus

9Iym ainionuiseljul Jno Suialasald uo snooj e synd pue

Saijioe) Lodyungauuay Jo uoisuedxs 40 /pue UOIINIISUOD
‘Juawade|dad “Uredas syl 01 AlINuiluod sapiaold osje | «

"uo139)dwod 1o} Sawel) awiy pue 3uipuny
91 sajeuipJood pue saseyaund pue suswaoidwi 1o} pasu
3y} sazioud pue ‘sayeulplood ‘saiipuapl ueid Jeak-c siy| «

'S]eIDIL0 JUBWUIBA0S J8D0] JO SalljIgisuodsal

Juepodwi 3sow ayj Jo auo si pue saseyoaind jejided

pue s1o9foid jeyded pasodoud sisi) 141 100] JUSWadeURW
pue Sujuueld jeioueuly e st ueld Juawanoldwy jeiidey v «

cUueld Juswanoidw| jeuden e si yeym 2



"Y40Mm uolrelljiqeyal Jo saiedal

Sousdiswa o ‘deddois ‘wusl-poys jo peasul Suiuueld
aduel-3uo] adelnoduUd 0] aINIDNJISBIUI pue ‘SalllIde) pue
s3uipjing ‘wuawdinba pue sa)d1yan uipiedal spasu jeuded
11943 ssasse Aj|njased 01 pagdin ale sioldaldi(] Juawuedsg

1adeuepy umo| ayl o031 sisanbau 10afoid 1euded pwgns

pue Ajinuapi 01 padinbal si Juswedap yoes ‘s1a3png
lenuue Jjeluswyedsp ayl jo uoneledald pue saAldalqo
Jeiuswedap Jo ayepdn pue malAal syl yum uoipunfuod u

SS920.d ue)d Juswanoiduw jeude) -



"4eak dUO JO SS3DX Ul )1 |NJASN B pue oW 40 QOO‘0TS 4O 1S0D B LM
S1asse se ‘Lodyungauusy Jo umo] ayl Aq ‘paulyap ale siasse jeuder

S92IN0S 31eALIg
i sjueln)
spun4 isnJ|
: 7 Suipuog

SpuUN. 9AI3S9Y
193png SuijesadQ

SN N NN

:apn)oUl Ty} S92IN0s Sulpuny Jo A1alieA e ale alay| <

"y31y urewal 0} anuiuod pue Ajueligqioxa pasealdul
SABY S3S0D uo3dNIISU0y) ueld siyl aredald 01 pasn alom S9JBWISD
159q ‘saseydind aininy 10} apiroid 01 pJey ale S1S0D 10BX3 JIUAM

‘Spaau euded
40 1s1] 9191dwod © ‘93pajmous Jiay) JO 3Saq 9y} 0} ‘pajidwod aney Jeils <

SS920.d U®)d uawaroidwi jeude)




uonesIuIWwpy

‘Sp1023l JeAIydJe INOo JO
3J1] 91qesn ayi sguojold ysiym wayl
3uio3uo ue si uolrealasald SpI0IY A

000'0Z $ 000's _ § 000'S  $ 000°S  $ 000'S0S'¥ $ 000'S0¥ § S/ejor

00000z $ e ... UoNEAISSBI SPIOJBY

000'0E .m: . 3JOIYsA S8pPOD /10T wom_awm

T T Tooo's 8 uoljensasald Spiogsy

000G B w. , : uoljerlesald spiooey

000'c $ , uoneNSSald SPIOOSY

ooo oom v w cozoeuwcoo leH umol

000's $ ) uojenesald mv.._ooom

cm_mwn_ leH umoy

00000y

000°G $ UONBAISSAl SPI0OSY

aimng LZAd 9Z Ad SC Ad v Ad €CAd uonesnsiulwpy'’




a1n1o1d Jares)d e sn aai3 im uSisap Teul ‘Jenamoy UoHiW Gy
40 1500 B 3UiTeLWIS? e 9M ‘UOIIONIISUOD U} SISBAIOUI IS0 01 aN()

'Y bs 0p0‘g A19rewixoidde ssedwodus pjnom jjeH umoj aui 0zoe Ul
weyesny pineq Aq paiejdwod Apnis aoeds pue weidoid sy uo paseg

jleH umo} Uodyungouua
eIy GLON waig seia - Y UR|d Bupepuay jemydeauc

NOILONYLSNOD TIVH NMOL

‘G202 ul uonajdwod

10} MOJje pJnoMm Sy |
‘duldauIdus pue udisap
Jeul} ayi aq pjnom ssasoud
9yl ul dais 1841y ay |

"193J1S YHON

Uo JJeH umo| pue uollels
all{ paulquod ® 10}
usisap ay1 yum oge sieak
0Z 49A0 uedaq JJleH umo|
mau e Jo uawdojanap ay|

N9IS3d TIVH NMOL




9z0z Bunds
uononsuo)d
99|dwon

aunjawi| uonodNIsuo)) pue udisa(

uonoNIIsU0n) |
uibag - |

.Y

G620¢ !

Jawwns/Buudg

ey A
UMO]_ 0] SAO[A|

Bunssuibug @
ubisaq 196png

uojjels aiiH abejjip

g Buudg/ez
lle} uononysuoD)
uibag
a)9|dwo)
ubiseqg

202 Jowwng .

Buuwssulbuz g
ubisa jobpng

lIeH umoj



all

(2r02) 2102 M3U - gyO gg auibug

|00) @nosal o::EEf
mmm___> Jojersuss

AM - J0jessus9

6€0Z NI IOV1dId MM €z auibug

_8E0Z 99e|doY 800Z MBU GHO- | Yuey : mom_nom

vmow NI IOV1d34 9002 L1 um:_uw 0om_awm

'(8202) 800Z MON - dD - Js|iely/suIBus feOg 3jqeieyu PSR
(£202) (S¥) sxoed JY vEOS

3dd azm_.E_“_

Gmomv omv u_ pio4 mSN 1 &y oom_amm

3dd hoEch_..._

co;mum all4 abeip

_ _3dd Jewbyou

cm_mmn_ uone)s aul4 m.mm___>

202 998|doY - 6661 MOU GO - 1£ Jappe adejday
Idd 1ewByaigy

¥20C NI m_0<._n_m_m Ad Nmm_‘ <l auibuz mom_awm

_ QOO 086l S€ Ysnug wﬁ“m_awm_

£00Z MaU - 4O - Japlel)/euibusjeog s|geleyu| _u_m_m
a4

000'sS8'Z §_000'7ZE $ 000'68  _§_ 000225t $ 000°/86°h $_000°c0L § sr&poL
000°006__$. . o I
00008 $ e
000GE _ § .
0000l $_ - .
000'006 _$_ -
000°005 _ $. o
00000y _ $ .
ooo'ce $ . _— e
000000E_ $
A
N ¢ B -
o...ooozz 8
. _. 0o000s’h $
I N S ..000ez s
000°0S}  $_ S
. 000'0SL°L _§
‘‘‘‘‘‘ I oo0ze  $
i . — oocoses  $
. — — 0o0'se __$
SO e 00002 _$_
ooo'sk  $
aimng LCAd 9C Ad SCAd T Ad €CAd




-aseyaund siy3 Joj JUNOIDI. SAIDSAI B Ul SPUN) apise Suilles uasq SeY UMO] ay |
'sieak gz Kioaa padeldal 9q 01 paau ygIS dYl ‘SPIBPUBIS (Yd4N) UOITRID0SSY UO0{I09104d 3114 [BUOITEN YlM 9dUBpIodde U)|

(Vg9DS) snieseddy 3uiyrealg pauleiuo)-4as

"} bs 0pO‘T 48y3oue Suireaoual pue Y bs 9QQ‘zZ SUIPPE 2pn]dul SUCITBAOURY "JJels Walp Jad ally 01 UMO| aly}
aunbau im sanoy swiiAep ayl Sunp Jels a)qe|ieAe 10} Paau Ay} pue ‘SludpIsal ioj suianed Sunnwwod ‘spuewap Suluiel|

uoielg all4 asefjip 4

'S1UN02sIp Suiseyaund Y)ng aA192a1 |1Im am Jeak awes ayl ut sulSud pue Jappe] e Suiseyauind Auiol Ag ‘omy
03 SY2NJ} YSn.iq 224y} puUe ‘auU0 0] SYDoNJ) Ioppe] OM] WOdy SulAoWw - SIDIYIA 4O Jaquuinu ay3 Suidnpal ate ap) "2IYaA 6661
B S| )0NJ} J9ppe] JUALIND 3Y) pue ‘9)1d1YdA plo-1edak-gz e sadejdal auiSua mau ayl ‘9)d1yoa OR6T © Sedejdas ¥onil ysniqg ay |

SYonJ] JappeT xy aulduy ‘ysnug
'SJ91Y31Jadlj JOLIDIUI-UOU N0 0] Pa]dAdal uayl s Ayuom J)i3s s eyl Jead Auy  'sieak 0T A1aas 1ead
si91y3yaly paylrenb Joudlul no sadejdas Feyl Jead 1nousny Jo S19s Q-7 Jo aseydind jenuue ue si siy|

(3dd) Juawdinb3 aA11D91014 RUOSIA] A

"JeOQ MOU S} UO pasn-al aq 03 alge aq {jim auiduad sy ‘Ajpreunpio -ajesado
9M S1BOQ 7 JO 3UO S| pue AjJueIsuod Jre syea] 1eyl 1eoq plo-leak-g7 e saoejdas aseyound siy|

1eog a)qeieyuj pisy A




"3)91yaA uoleasdal Jaduassed-T INO Jo Juswsdridal Jenday
sng jo juawadejday »

'SpPYauU 9dueUUIRW SseaIdap 01 pased aq JIm ease SSE22® dNgnd ay3 AusAlap Jrew Joy yied syl jo adesn paseatdul ay) 01 anQ
107 Sunjred pue AemaALIq JO Sulne( Jied S1aysyally

Hodyungauuay
40 spooysoqydiau ay) Ul uoigealdal pue syded JO aining ay} Lo yoeqpasy Jayred 0} ssadoud juawadedus ongnd e aq )im Siy |

19244 ale)jIA pue sled S 91uSyadl ‘plal{ SUOSIe 10} ue]d JoISBp S)ied A~
"J9pl0 UBA3 S| dUO pUODIas 3Yl pue Plo SIeak T JOAO St Jamow U "0Z0zZ Ul padedal aq 01 pajnpayds sem sy

JOMO A~

000005 $ 00005 ¢ 000's. § 000°0SL ¢ 00052 $ 000'0ZL § srejoL R
000°00S_ _ $ R $S900Y jeog 2l|dnd
'000°05$ e ____sliey [9osed mmm___>
o 000G $ . '€ 9seyd sepiusWy Hed
000 imn ) ;wx o sng 6|0z @oe|dey
o | — oo0's.  § Z 95y SelusWY ed
I SR . _al006L S . | 8Seyd SspusWy Yied
— —] uwum%_.w “wmw \ . 000'cE____$  Buned yied sieybyol

$
ooo.mN 3 ue|d Ja)se|y syied
$

Emeom_nQ Jemop wn ._. o_mN




'SS920® Julioow pue yiom said 1oy Hodsuel) Jo sueaw |ednoeld aiow pue Jajes e apiaoid im siy| “SuLioow sy uo Jeoq
19)SeWIOqIBH 3y} SS9DJk 0} pue Jaid Sy) punoJe 3Iom 0] pasn Jeogmol 21seld g ayi aorjdal 0] YIS PAEOGING JewWS B JO 3SBYdINg

Jawadeday Ay3uiq 191seWIOqIRH A

“JUSWUOIIAUD Ysiey 8y} WOl Ieam 03 snp A1essadau Si sisIoy Jo uawadejdal dIpoldd ‘umop s908 isioy Arewiid e usym usns
Aeuonouny iny mojje pjnom juswadeldes paads Jadoid y ‘mols Ajauwaiaxs st yaiym 1sioy anuiw J1ad g ue si 1sioy areds uaind ay|

sjuawade|day I1SIOH

‘Aluanbaly se janjas 03 3uipaau INOYIM JOGIBH dY} U} SONSS| J0NUOW 0} 3wl uni JaSUo] MOJJe Tjim
SYUB) 329p MOJDq OM| "SI} UNI JO SINOY ¢ 10§ SMOJJE UDIUMm JUE] 3D8P 9A0qe UOJ|eS 2T B 4O Sunt AjIualind 1eoq JoisewlogieH ay

Jawade|day yuer| jan4 Jeog JalSeuLoqieq 4

“o00'0c ¢ - $ 00s'S $ - $ 005°S $ 000'98L'T $ s/ejol
“000‘0g $ Jeoq Jajseuuogiey
- S T oos's§ ) Juswaoe|day Hw_o_._ N&
o T T T 0s's iw ........ " Weweaoe|dey ﬁm_o_._ E
0000y ¢ ~ siiedoy] 9SNOH Jepmoys
(E2Ad 8 TZAd) JURID dIHS U Y0OS$ oot s ~ wewooeiday Aybuig JajsEwLOGIEH
.o va3 We'1$ T T T 000 S€L' w paus Jieg pue EmEmom_awm 181d mm_oa._on_ aden
spund umoL s M00L$ | 00S°S Emeom_ao._ )sioy ssedg

ﬂﬁa

CcuEmom_amm sue ey _m: n4g) jeog ._m;me._oEmI




pPays yeg pue juswade|day Jald asiodiod ade)

'S92IN0SAI 9Je)S
pue JeJapa) Woly saluow
eid sepnpoul 1sanbal ay |

‘ainjonaiselul pue Jaid 3uide
ay1 aoe)dal Jjm Teys Aujioey
Jatd Mau e JO uoI1DNASUoD

pue ugisap Jadoid uielgo
0} L0} teak-13nw e wolj
Swals 1sanbal jeuded siy|




- (O : : TR
i [
— ittt _ aatith

] =k

KoisrD 5 X 18 vor WIS W S _ “ﬁMy.ﬂ,

]

l.lu.ﬁ-.. TN
oo :

—_—
—
(\
i E
i

R o |
AYESOND Ov B3N

WOk Wk NVE DTTLENO
RE2MURINE Wikt BWE 130 SO

e YR O DI WNED W
wils CAORIe Chd ve

ulvei WISVReRke- TNy
w ATl TR R
Usr 2N W Dc SO0 4 1EION




polajunodus se mL_.maml_ snoauepedsiw Byl «

JurINRISAI dY] SAOQR BalR
a8el03s 0} aseoulelS J0LAIXD JO Juswade|day «

walsAs 1anngd jo juswadeiday <«

adewep Jajem o0} anp Sunaued
Joajul pue duiyieays ‘uiwel) awos Jo Juawadeiday <«

agewep Jayem 0} anp
3ulpis pue 3ujyse)} J0LI2IX3 dWOS Jo Juawade|day <«

(2) S100p WOOoIYIBq JOLIIXD JO JUdWIdR|day <«

loop @duellus eaJse Sujulp JoLRIXa JO Juawade|day «

:POIJ1IUBPI SBM SPaBU /SUIddU0D

JO 1s1] SUIMO)04 BY ] "SUIBDUOD 4310 AJIjuapi o1
P9191dWOod Sem JuaLISSasse Lidap-ui aiow e ‘sioop aul
JO 934Y1 1B UOoISNIIUI J9JBM JO SUIBDUO0D JU3d3l 01 aN(

SYIVd3d ISNOH ¥3dMOHD




_$ smol

R

ANV JasinIg XXXz mom_awm_

JosIin) XXXZ mom_amw_

EmEmow_awm m.hm\stom. EwEmmmcms_ Spiooay alenbg eque)

000'/8 ¢ 000ZZF $ 00028 ¢ 00022 $ 008'CS $ 008'6Zl
00/8  § ___ . _. g
000§ S I
_.ooo's, 8
L ... 000%8 §
M 0002 $
_._ooo'se 8
- o0y _$
o089 8 . _
o __ooo'sz__ . $
— . S ooozk 8 |
S oo098  §
0089  §
ainng LZAd 9¢ Ad GZ Ad ¥Z Ad €CAd

(2  sJasiniD | z0e pue 0202 aoeday

Jasinig 6102 wom_amm_

EwEmom_awm coamm>>

Josinug 8L0z wom_amw_

m._m:_a wop Jesiniy wom_aww_

Emeom_wa_ DVAH

epeibidn _mzc:aw

() ssesinig 210z soeidey

sieyndwon) Jasini) aoedoy

9dljod




‘paoedal Jo parepdn aq 03 Spasu ‘plo sJeak Oz J9A0 SI UdIYM ‘Qremyos juswoSeurw spiodal InQ
a1BeM1JOS JuaLadeUR SPI0D3Y alenbg jelua) 4

‘P10 sJeak anjom) uey) Jateald aq Jim A101UBAUT JUBLIND 3Y) Se ‘Juawade|dal pasu sI21s|oy pue suwieapls wawredap Ny
Juawade|day suodeapy

'siredas A)31502 pue sumopyealq juanbaiy sasned yoiym ‘payIoOMIaA0 AJJenunuod Si WaisAs
JUBLIND 3Y| "REAT Ul ¥2BQg SuIpjing Jajjews yonw e 1oy paudisap Ajjeiiul Sem Jey) waisAs 3unoo) syl apesddn 01 pasu ap

uawWade|day DVAH ~
"uolie|ndas JUBWUISA03 mau 01 anp walsAs uoissaiddns aliy 102413 pjo ue a1epdn 01 pasu ap

ope.ddn Jepuudg 4

‘uoijesado
JNo ojul way) ayelodiodul pue S9J21YaA JLI39)9 10 pue pugAy Te Suiyoo) Jo ssadoid Syl SNUITUOD Jjim apn 'siaindwod
MU SAPN)DUI Y2IYm SB)2iYaA adljod Jo juswadeidal jensn ayl sepnjoul ueld jendes wiel-3uoj Juswpedsp asiod ay |

191ndwo) g uawade)|day Jasiniy




000°2Z’y § 000889 § 0000EL $ 000LiL‘L § 000626 § 000858 § S/Ejol

0000z $ Jamop 1202 doeldoy

00005z § - JEIS UIBISAM 1202 Soeiday

ooo'st” § J9[0U0D |2N JSSENIBNS 0Z0T Soeideay

(3S uaaig 01 sseideaq ‘000t § sdwnd [en4 810 eoeidey
WOlj) NUBAY Uedd() <« 0009 8 FX¥ 0SE4 PIod 0202 8oedey
000°6vZ " $_ LLN SsapoelL 810z eoedey

000'0LL  $ 20UpioEq ApL 085 9SED 8107 veIdey
$

$

$

$

uww\_um _.._.mmn_ < oco.,NF ) Jading sur odeIg) 210z 9oeday
000091 SEp 0oWAL 910g 9oBIdey

SHeMapIS ¢2A4 A 000'L” 1e5Y [nq yX¥ 0SEd P10 9102 30elday
000'052 ] © " [euogeussiu| 910z @oe/dey

oo0'ste  § [euogetIBlu| GLOZ @2e/day

000's0L ' $ SHEMOPIS JONISUD pue Jeday
"000'8EE $ - SPEO JONJSUOIB) PUE Jiedsy
000061 ¢ Jopeo Ar £10Z oe|day

000'00L $ SHEMBPIS JoN[su0d pue jedsy

‘000'0vF  $ ~" speoi)onisuodai pue sieday|

ooo.mmm $ ssaporll /002 doe|dey
000'S6 $ SYEMBPIS JONASUOD pue Jiedsy
000182 ¢ Speo Jongsuooas pue Jeday
"~ 00009 Xt 05€-4 900z @oe|day

000'0vZ JeuoleUIsIU| ZL0Z @oelday

peoy ade)y p|0 <« 000'06 SHEMBPIS 19NASUCD pUE JIBday
000'ceS SPEO0J JON[SUOIDI pue Jledey

SPBOY €2A4 ~ S ooo‘oz  $ Jeay] [BNQ ¥X2 05€-d 6002 ddeidoy

ooo_wmw $ [euonewaju| |10z adeidsy

000°08 $ SY[EMBPIS JANJSUOD pue Jleday

0002y ' $ SPEs) JoNgSUCoa) pue JIeday

= =

(Jley) peoy a3pny 3eQ0
(41ey) anuaay poomyoeag
anuaAy apeld)ag

A A A A

peoy auolg

D B A




aue MO|SuIp
1 PEOY |)IH USIUYM
3]241D) 3JOWISIM
N - Aep 9|ppes
peoy y93.) siequny (PeOY |)1H USIIYM O3 PI0J3PPIg) PEOY BIUIND |
190418 [o0OYOS T amuQuIod USIH
anuaAy Jleeg o peoy yooig Ajjaaeio) |
(199135 Y1ION 03 peOY JSANY) PECY [SpUNIY PEOY |IIH paiied

aue Jainbg
o 399.35 yanos (3ey) peoy 1011351g SSPIIM
"(41eY) peoy 1214351Q SIP|IM peoy ainised pRyANEM
[ R 192116 [Jead 192415 Sunds
anuaay 119|Meg | aALIQ POOMIBYS
(94D 01 YlIoN) peoy [9puniy | peoy Jald
- o peoy eedy aueq pooMmION




uawdinb3 sysop ongnd

B s - s 1 s vsoer INI €002 8 onoson |
- $ - $ - $ Jading aur d1d 000G NVLLL 1002 g8c SAloSTY
00061 § 000'slk ¢ Jojloquoy |angd Isiseweng 0202 ge0z
0006t $ - $ 000Gl $ sdwing [sn4 ERIETENETLETT 8102 €e0C
000'0eZ $ 00002 % 000°052$ JElS WIsIsa 1202 2 £e0C
o009 $ 000 $ 000's9 $ X 0G€4 plo4 0coe l 2e0e
000'0sL $ 00002 $ 000'02L $ dv1 08S 98B 810¢ (44 €02
00sZ. $ 00z $ 000s. $ leay [eng X 05€4 ado3 910¢ 6 0€0Z
ooo'see $ 000Gl $ 00005 $ VS JEISHIOM ANI 9102 Z 6202
000zl $ - 3 00021 $ Jadigs aun 0%ex) Ll0e 620
000'8L $ 000z $ 0000z $ unj o1z MM 120¢ 820¢
000091 $ - $ 000091 $ 1% 4 OOWAL 910¢ €c 8202
000'sze $ 0000z $ 000'ste ¢ LN ssapjoely 810¢c 8202
0000€Z $ 000'sL $ 0006tz $ VS JEIS)IoM 1INI Slog v 120¢
000°g9L $ o000'sz $ 000°06) $ 19pBOT] MirvS ar €10¢ 0c 9202
000'¢ez $ 000z $ 000'sez $ 1S1N SsepjoeLl, 2002 12 gcog
00088 $ 0002 $ 00009 §$ X 0S¢ aqd04 9002 1] ¥20¢
000'sez $ 00061 $ 000'0ve $ VS JEISHIOM INI cLoc € ¥20e
000'l2z $ 0006l ¢ 000'9cZ $ VS EISNIOM AINI LL0Z G €202
0o0'0L $ - 3 000'0L $ 19y |enq ¥X¢ 0s¢-d4 adod 6002 9 €coe

180D ~$oes 1500 A
196png’ TTioepeli” | Tpeydslong T adAl 4N JesA al aoedey

yonui
dwnp uoil-auo
MAdd dMy 06¢-4
B UM yona3
MAd dme 06¢-4

600 do€1day A

3oNJ4} UO}-9Al
110Z 9oeiday 4




000005t $

000'00S't $

$ 000°00Ss‘c $

000°006°€

puog %08
Ueld %08

000°00S

000°00L

000'052

.000'082C $

- $ 0000EL'E $

Z 9seld ainjonJiselju| [goled abejin

| eseyd ainongselju| [eoled abejin

fleHq umo ._.-w._:wo:hm.m‘cc_ _o.o._mn_ ‘abeyjA

SoINXI Em__umm.aw a3 Jo eseyoaing

sulg UOIO8||07) SISEA\ Palelliojny Jo co_m_:uo<

mc:mmc_mcm 9 mc_ccm_n_ mx_sswv_w Q vmom E_m

mc._:cw_n_ asiy oA m.m.w

wswdojsrs uelq dwo)
Ad1jod Buoz [eoled mmm___>




"yoeag sy00y 95005 1B pue ‘asiodiod ader) ul “JaAry yungauuay| ayi 3uoje Auadoid areaud pue aln}oniiselul UMO| UO 3Sl |aAd] BaS
40 s1oeduwi 9y} uo pasnooy Alenaiued ssoooud uiuueld e Suipuswiwioddl ale JYeis umo] ‘9duey’) arewl}) JO uoijeulwexa ayl Jo ped sy

Suiuue)d as1y 19A8] €IS A

"6T-AINOD Aq padioy sAejap ayl 031 anp Auessadau aq Aew sSuileawl 9a1ILLIWOD
leuonippe pue sayepdn eleq -1oofoid ayl 919)dwod 01 A1essadau aq Aew joeaiuod Suiuueld aaisuayasdwiod JUaLIND 8yl 03 UOISUIIXD Uy

iawdolaaaq ueld dwoy 4

'SUOITeD0] 21391RI1S M) B Ui S1YSI) Jomau ay3 Jo
asueydadoe ofgnd adpnl 01 sueld pue s1y3iieails JaLIND UNo adejdal 01 SaINIXly snowea Suluiwexs Auailing sl 8aiwwod Suiydn sy

saunxij WyBmeans qIl A

"WalsAs pajewolne ue aq Ajayi] |)ImM 10BJIUOD Mau Byl Jeyl aziuSooal yeis ‘Aiasnpul ayy ul se8ueys £8ojouydal pue ‘SIaAUp
¥ Aq pasuom sinoy uo suone|ndal ‘sadeuoys Joge] panuuod 01 ang ‘Hzoz 1SNSny ul sandxa 19ei3U0D JRAOWIDL 9ISEM JUBLIND 3Y |

sulg UOI108]j07) SISBM\ Palewolny

"peoy Jald elA SS932€ alinbal )M 1314 9s10diod ade)) e uawisaaul pauueld ay] -saiadoud areaud pue alg osiodiod ader) ayl ssedde
01 Aynige songnd ays s1oedwi Yoiym SUIpooy panuiluod 0} aNp POy J3ld JO uoiuod e pjingal 01 pasu ayl paiyiiuapi umo] ayl €102 Y|

SY|eMapIS 7 PROY 9l A




#5%“ il
@ 31d1oN1eg ey
MOYYOROL

@ YA
LUOMNNNBINNIN

uBld INITH 1deIuv]

SLNIJWWOD 33LLINNOD ONIRIIILS

INWISVIINAHWMOA D

_. IKINGCTIANG WUNIIOA

RV
ry IAMKTRASOWUNLIOS

LA CIT, DRTRSTIIR Y TRA I

asy LT
PN 2 L e

eEREEDOE

ViHy
NS O13A3D TVISNALRKE —

JuB)NSu0yD

Buluoz \
_ 10} 196png

o 9J0A

,.f_

'020Z Ul UOISIA 192Jed 23e]|IA 3}
Ul paynsas yoiym ssasoud ongnd
€ }00uapuUn pue 9a1HWwwod
e pajlodde uawida)es ay|

‘sieak Auew u
dpew Sey UMO| a3y} JUaLWISaAUl
1s93.e} ay1 si 10afoid siy |




ooo oo— z m.

1000°'00¢

000°00€

000°00€
000001
ooo Sel
coo mN_.
000' mw
000’ K

$

ooo ooo b w

00000+
000°024

00005
1000001
000008 _
000°008

000°008 _
000008 _

000002

$ srEoL

moc_._ Lm\suw Nnm_‘ se|iw g'g soejday
L1# uoners aezn_ ainsed v_mumxm>> mom_awm

_9l# uoneys dwing pnop uojBulysE BoB|daY

Gl# uonelg nE:n_ n>=n. Hodsaig mum_amw_
" uswsoeidey duing sepun
L10Z Z04# Us210s auy 1aqnH

110Z LOL# Usai0s suy JagnH
ANV sdwnd >>o

Joxin m_n_m._mEn_._,w wum_nmm

ﬁmmm_._m 0] E:Em:ozv utep bsso any Uessp mom_nmm_

_ZL# uonels aE:m >m>>cm__._ mmc_v_ oom_nmx

Lmzmw ooom mom_%m

£l uonelg dung auey sbupy aoe|doy
v co_uﬂw aE:n__ >m>>r_m__._ ‘sBury soe|dey

m:_._mmc_mcm-m I# uolerg QE:‘n_ auen mmc_v,_ oom_aox

m::mmc_m:m;v L# uonels aE:n_ >m>>_._m_I sBuny wum_awm_
h ~jonu) eowies €10z 9oeidey
_,_,# co_ﬁm«w dwng “py S aoe(day
Z# uone)s dwng sue sy eoe|dey
uasul 1# UoiielS dwing “py S|l aoe(dey
m:_._mmc_m:m_ -2 els dwng aueT sl oom_aom_

m#‘ uoliels dwnd ‘i UK YINoS mom_amw_

_ uonelg nE:n_ ¥aeu) sjequn mom_amm

wt uonels dwnd any ueesQ wom_awm

Syue L UoReIsY Ul SioXI 99eiday

m:_._wmc_m:m_ G co.:m«w QE:n_ 1S Ue yinog mum_amm
mc:mmc_mcm-:oz S duing .v_mm._o sJequn] mum_amm_

mccwwc_mcm-w% :o:.Ew nE:n_ m>< :mwoo wom_nmm_

i;w
00005 $
00005 $

$

000°0S

‘Koueldadxa

941 412y} puokaq

119M aJe pue siedk g7 JO
SS30X3 Ul 3Je SIaXIW oM}
3y} jo ade Juaund ay |

SIaXIN ¢ 9oe|day A

193G UlBy YINoS <
¥year)sieqin) <«
Ay UBRD( «
suolyels duwng
¢ JO UOIIONJISU0DY
pue ugdisag 4




009'P9V$
92110

000°0.¥$

9% 8 SHled 000'.6'9$

sjoafoud jeioadg

000°096'9%
19)ema)sepp

Juswyuedaqg Aq
dID 1eaA-G B



0oo‘oc8cl$

puog
000°8¥Z‘2$ |
SYVELTHY :
000°005‘E$ N
ajeAlld
000°099$
pun4 jsnia|

1.,.wu‘_:om Suipun Aq
diD Jed)- B



000°CL8'8$
sa}l|1oe @
sbuipjing

000'600'9L$
ainjoniysesju|

000°‘S¥v'L$
uone}SIUIWPY 009°2€9'v$
juswdinbgy

ad/] Aq
diD 1e3A-S



o — — £$91 AALVIOdYOINI -
 ANIVINLIOdINAIANNAMAONMO L

"2JN}ONJISelUl pue sallljioe)

‘wuswdinba ‘Ajiadold paumo umo| Jo wuswaaoidw pue ‘desydn
‘9oueUdUIRW 3y} 0} suleuad 1 se stejjop staked-xel duipuads sl
UMO] 3y} moy 33s 01 AJjige ayl suazijid Jno aAIS ||IM Ul ‘Ssadnlipuadxa
JO sadAl asayy o) ueid 01 aping e Se 9AIaS AJUO 10U )M SIY |
‘poliad JeaA-¢ e Joj saseyaind pue s)oafoid Juswanoidwi jeuded
pasodoud Jo 1sN) e sepiaoud eyl 100] Wswadeuew pue 3uiuueld
W.I91-3U0] B Se 9AIas 0] Jueaw Ajarewiyn si ueid siyy ‘Arewwins U

Aewwuing .




AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




Item 7

Maine Regional School Unit 21

W The Schools of Arundel, Kennebunk, and Kennebunkport
L = “Developing productive global citizens by building knowledge and character.”
V?‘W ) eveloping productive global citizens by building kn ge and character.
T
Terri I. Cooper, Ed.D., Superintendent of Schools Scott A. Harrison, Director of Human Resources
Anita Bernhardt, Assistant Superintendent of Schools Mark Graziano, Director of Finance
Susan L. Martin, M.S. Ed., Director of Special Services Richard Terwilliger-Smith, Director of Operations

STATEMENT FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE
CONTACT: Loreta McDonnell, Vice Chair, RSU 21 Board: Imcdonnell@rsu21.net

RSU 21 School Board Files Injunction

January 10, 2022 - Kennebunk, ME — Today, the RSU 21 School Board filed for an injunction in response to the recall
efforts initiated by a group of Kennebunk citizens. We do not take this step lightly. Based on legal review of the
information set forth by those spearheading the recali and the recall process itself, we are troubled by three issues.

First, statements made in the affidavits used to secure the necessary signatures are provably false, unsupported, and
subjective; therefore, those who signed the recall petition were misled about what they were signing.

Second, legal opinion counsels that Kennebunk’s Charter cannot legally be applied here because board members are
elected by their town of residence, but they serve the entire regional school unit. A single, local government cannot
apply its own recall provisions to a regional school board that represents three different municipalities—in this case,
Kennebunk, Kennebunkport and Arundel. This injunction will provide clarity on how any future recall initiatives in Maine
regional school units would be conducted. The RSU 21 Board stands in support of Mr. LeBlanc, Mr. Stentiford, and their
elected rights to their complete terms serving all students of the three towns of Arundel, Kennebunk, and
Kennebunkport.

Finally, we fully support voters’ rights to recall government officials under appropriate and legally defined terms. The
school board was specifically designed by the State Legislature to govern RSU 21 with 12 members acting as a single
body, and this plan was approved by the State in 2009, when RSU 21 was formed.

We are committed to protecting the integrity of our regional school unit. This board—and all future boards—need to be
able to focus on their responsibility to sustain and further the education of our students. The board and the
superintendent are unified in support of the injunction.

Hi#

* A International” !
B F Baccalaureate 177 Alewive Rd., Kennebunk, ME 04043 |
A

Phone: 207.985.1100 * Fax: 207.985.1104 *  http://www.rsu2l.net



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




N O RMA N : Norman Hanson & DeTroy, LLC T 207.774.7000

tL F 207.775.0806
H A. N S O N ?::grg:::lama::’ www.nhdlaw.com
F ) Y P.O. Box 4600 rpierce@nhdlaw.com
D E T R O Y Portland, ME 04112-4600

Russell B. Pierce, Jr.

December 22, 2021

VIA EMAIL ONLY

RSU 21 School Board

Maine Regional School Unit 21 (Arundel, Kennebunk, Kennebunkport)
177 Alewive Rd.

Kennebunk, ME 04043

RE: Opinion on School Board Director Recall Initiatives: Legality Issues, and
Application of 20-A M.R.S. §§ 1451 et seq.

Dear RSU 21 School Board:

This letter provides my legal advice and opinion on the following issue:

Whether under applicable law, including 20-A M.R.S. §§ 1451, et seq. and § 1474
therein, Directors elected to serve 3-year terms on the School Board of Maine
Regional School Unit 21 (“RSU 217), may be subject to the general “recall”
procedures of only one of the participating municipalities (or fewer than all of the
participating municipalities), under the corresponding municipal charter.

For the reasons set forth below, my conclusion is “no” — the School Board Directors of
RSU 21 are elected directors of a separate body politic, Regional School Unit 21, with election,
terms, and vacancies determined by the specific and comprehensive statutory scheme of 20-A
M.R.S. §§ 1451, et seq. That specific statutory scheme governs the formation of regional school
units, and State approval of them based upon submissions of detailed plans covering, among
other issues, election of the initial board, allocation of voting power of several directors,
governance, terms, and vacancies. It is well-established law that a specific statutory scheme will
have precedence and control over a general one. See Central Maine Power v. Devereux Marine,
Inc. 2013 ME 37, 922, 68 A.3d 1262 (it is a “fundamental rule of statutory construction that we
favor the application of a specific statutory provision over the application of a more general



December 22, 2021
Page 2

provision when there is any inconsistency™); South Portland Civil Service Commission v. City of
South Portland, 667 A.2d 599 (Me. 1995) (applying principle between general and specific
provisions of a city charter).

A central premise of my opinion is that the provisions of Title 20-A governing vacancies
in regional school unit boards do not include “recall” as a basis for the creation of a vacancy, in
direct contrast to the general statute governing vacancy in municipal office found in Title 30-A.
Compare 20-A M.R.S. § 1474, with 30-A M.R.S. § 2602. It is contrary to the above rule of
statutory construction to import the general Title 30-A provision into the specific Title 20-A
provision; indeed, the opposite conclusion must be drawn from the absence of “recall” as a basis
for creating a vacancy in Title 20-A. It is reasonable to infer the Legislature chose not to include
“recall” as the basis for creating a vacancy in a governing board which, invariably, will be
composed of directors from several participating municipalities, based upon carefully planned,
reviewed and State-approved balances and considerations of representative apportionment. See
20-A M.R.S. § 1472 (methods of voting apportionment). It chose not to do so for good reason —
to avoid potentially a small group of two dozen or so residents from only one participating
municipality, triggering “recall” procedures that disrupt or reverse the policies and benefits of
several municipalities having come together to form a shared, cooperative, governing body, in
the first place, under a legislative scheme specifically authorizing that shared form of
governance.

All of the resource allocations and the benefits derived by several participating
municipalities forming a regional school unit, and each municipality’s deliberative process in
joining that regional school unit based on a common plan submitted to the State, cannot be
lightly undone by reading into Title 20-A a statutory provision that simply does not exist within
it.

Before moving to a more detailed explanation of my opinion, it is important for me to
express the caveat that while this opinion represents my firm and considered opinion on the issue
presented, there is not a clear “right” or “wrong” opinion on this legal issue. First, there is no
clear governing precedent — i.e., we have no prior court case decided upon the same set of facts
presented here. Second, we must recognize that as such, I am not foretelling with perfect
accuracy how the courts may rule on the issue, nor guaranteeing what the final outcome of any
judicial proceeding on the issue would be. What I can convey, however, is that this opinion
represents my best firm and candid judgment on the issues, employing the methodology of
analysis and reasoning commonly used by the courts, drawing upon canons of statutory
construction, case law, and other relevant information. I can convey that I would be prepared to
advocate for this position in Maine court, recognizing that no answer to the question is altogether
perfect or unassailable. I of course cannot guarantee a particular court outcome in an adversarial
proceeding; but this opinion does represent my considered judgment on the issue.

A. Factual Premise

In 2008, with a proposed operational date of July 1, 2009, the reorganizational plan
(“Plan™) for establishing Regional School Unit 21 (“RSU 21”") was submitted by the appropriate



December 22, 2021
Page 3

representatives of the municipalities of Arundel (which was its own municipal school unit at the
time) and the municipalities of Kennebunk and Kennebunkport (MSAD 71 at the time). See Plan
at 2.

The Plan included the consensus that weighted voting (under statutory option B, 20-A
M.R.S. § 1472(2)) would be established for the RSU School Board. The weighted voting would
result in six elected directors from Kennebunk, three directors from Kennebunkport, and three
from Arundel. Option B was not mandatory — for example, Option C could also have been
chosen, wherein directors are elected at large by all the voters in the regional school unit. 20-A
M.R.S. § 1472(3). This is significant in recognizing that where the Plan is silent, as it was here,
on the specific question of whether and under what terms directors might be subject to “recall”
by one participating municipality, reliance on that omission could have been a significant factor
in the State’s approval of the Plan to formulate RSU 21 in the first instance.

In accordance with State authorizing statutes, the Plan was received by the Commissioner
of Education, and a State certificate issued, with date of organization of July 1, 2009.

In 2019, director Tim Stentiford joined the RSU 21 School Board. Mr. Stentiford has
served as the Chair of the Human Resources Committee, co-leader of the Diversity, Equity and
Inclusion Ad Hoc Committee, and is currently the Chair of Communications Committee. He
was also unanimously elected by the RSU 21 Board as RSU 21°s delegate to the State assembly
for 2021.

In July 2020, Art LeBlanc joined the RSU 21 School Board. He was elected Board Chair
at his first meeting, and reelected unanimously in 2021. See 20-A M.R.S. § 1471(6) (the RSU
board elects its own officers).

In November of 2021, there was a public announcement that a recall effort targeting at
least these two members of the RSU 21 School Board had been initiated within the municipality
of Kennebunk,

On November 29, 2021, two correspondences, each purportedly signed by 30 individual
“K ennebunk voters,” were delivered to the Kennebunk Select Board, purporting to invoke
Article VII of the Kennebunk municipal charter, for the recall of these two RSU 21 School
Board directors. Some of the reasons set forth for recall appear to be provably false, objectively,
other reasons include unsupported subjective characterizations that should not form the basis of
any “recall” under the law, and/or statements or events not causally related to the individual
service of either director (and therefore not causally related to a valid recall basis). The
correspondences recite in conclusory fashion the subjective standard apparently found in the
Kennebunk charter, that there exists, among the respective 30 correspondence signatories, “a loss
of confidence in [the director’s] ability to perform the duties and responsibilities of the office” —
apparently drawn from language in Article VII of the Kennebunk charter.



December 22, 2021
Page 4

B. Issue Presented

As stated above, the issue is whether, under applicable law (including the provisions of
20-A MLR.S. §§ 1451, et seq. and including § 1474 therein — which specifically address the
structure and governance of regional school units such as RSU 21) Directors elected to serve 3-
year terms on the School Board of RSU 21 are legally subject to idiosyncratic “recall”
procedures of only one of the participating municipalities (or fewer than all of the participating
municipalities), under a municipal charter.

C. Legal Analysis

In my opinion, Title 20-A does not allow for such recall of RSU School Board directors.
School Board directors are elected officials of the regional school unit. They are not “elected
officials of the municipality” under the town charters, certainly not without express inclusion of
them within these general charter provisions. As discussed further below with respect to
Arundel, a town charter may, arguably, specifically apply recall procedures of the town to
School Board directors who are representative of the municipality within the RSU structure — as
Arundel’s town charter appears to do in what appears to be a properly limited fashion. But
absent a specific enactment to apply a charter recall procedure o regional school unit directors,
the law as it stands now would apply the specific statutory scheme of Title 20-A, over any
general provisions of Title 30-A involving elected officials, in this specific area involving
elections, terms, and vacancies of RSU directors.

There are good policy reasons supporting this statutory construction, in keeping with the
advancement of the State legislative interests and policies in authorizing the formation of
regional school units, to advance the State policy and constitutional requirements of public
education. See Maine Const. Art. VIII (constitutional provision imposing State legislative duty
to require municipalities to make suitable provisions for the support and maintenance of public
schools).

i. The Regional School Unit Comprehensive Legislative Scheme

Title 20-A, sections 1451 to 1512, is the comprehensive legislative scheme authorizing
school organization into “regional school units.”! This is the legislative scheme that the three
municipalities here (Kennebunk, Kennebunkport, and Arundel) affirmatively joined and invoked,
including express references to Title 20-A’s several statutory provisions in the submitted and
approved Plan. The structure and governance of RSU’s must always be in keeping with the
declared policy of the State supporting the reorganization into these “regional, state-approved
units of school administration.” 20-A M.R.S. § 1451 (listing several policies, including in

! Note that this discussion and my opinion here must only apply to a “school board” as constituted as the governing
body of a Regional School Unit, which as discussed further herein is its own “body politic.” Under Title 20-A,
“:School board’ means the governing body with statutory powers and duties for a school administrative unit
[including regional school unit].” 20-A M.R.S. § 1(20) & (26). In contrast, a * ‘[s]chool committee’ means the
governing body with statutory powers and duties for a municipal school unit.” 20-A M.R.S. § 1(29).



December 22, 2021
Page 5

subsection 1 “equitable educational opportunity for all students”) (bold emphasis added). See
also 20-A M.R.S. § 1(24-B) (“ ‘Regional school unit’ means the state-approved unit of school
administration as established pursuant to chapter 103-A [of Title 20-A].”).

Formation of a regional school unit is governed by sections 1461-1468, which include
detailed provisions involving submission of a plan for reorganization into an RSU, and State
approval. Once approved, the State Board of Education issues a certificate of organization. 20-A
M.R.S. § 1461(7).

When formed, the regional school unit “is a body politic and corporate.” 20-A M.R.S. §
1461(1).

Subchapter 3 (sections 1471-79) are the statutory provisions on governance of the RSU.
A regional school unit board is established, with composition, size, voting apportionment, etc.
designed in accordance with the submitted plan and the provisions of this subchapter 3. As
stated above, the regional school unit board itself “shall elect a chair and vice-chair and other
officers as may be necessary.” 20-A M.R.S. § 1471(6). And significantly, a statutory term of
office is set: *“in municipalities with annual elections, director serve three-year terms. ... A
director serves until a successor is elected and qualified.” 20-A M.R.S. § 1471(2) (bold
emphasis added). Note that even the oath of office is specifically defined under the terms of the
statute. 20-A M.R.S. § 1471(5). The elected director takes this oath, in relation to the regional
school unit board, not the form of oath which might be contained in a specific town charter.

Following special provisions involving the transition and election of an initial board,
including significantly the plan submission of opting for one of at least four methods of director
voting representation apportionment (the towns here chose Method B, weighted votes), the
resulting elections result in a school board for governance of the RSU. Significantly, the election
provision of Title 20-A, section 1473, for the purposes of accommodating nominations for initial
directors, specifically references Title 30-A to define directors “for the purposes of
nominations,” as “a municipal officials.” What this emphasizes is that the school board directors
are not, across the canvas on all issues, “municipal officials” under Title 30-A: it takes a specific
legislative reference for a specific legislative purpose to include them as 30-A “municipal
officials.”

Also significant within section 1473 is that, when this Plan adopts Method B under the
statute, “a reduction in the number of directors, the addition of directors and the terms of office

of additional directors must be in accordance with this chapter.” 20-A M.R.S. § 1473(2)(B)
(bold emphasis added).

Then, most significantly for the purposes of this analysis, “vacancies” in a regional
school unit board are statutorily defined as follows:

1. Definition of vacancy. A vacancy on a regional school unit board occurs:

A. When the term of office of a regional school unit board director expires;



December 22, 2021
Page 6

B. When a regional school unit board director changes residency from the
municipality or subdistrict from which elected. Evidence that an individual is
registered to vote in a municipality is prima facie evidence of that individual's
residency;

C. On the death of a regional school unit board director; or
D. When a regional school unit board director resigns.

In addition to paragraphs A, B, C and D, except in municipalities having a
municipal charter, when a director is absent without excuse from 3 consecutive
regular board meetings, the regional school unit board may declare that a vacancy
exists.

20-A MLR.S. § 1474(1).2
il Section 1474 Analysis

The significance of section 1474, quoted above, is that it does not include “recall” as a
basis for the creation of a vacancy on the board. As an omitted term, within an enumerated
section, the proper statutory construction is to read the enumeration to mean that a recall is not a
basis to create a vacancy on an RSU board.

If there is any doubt on this point, one can contrast the general statutory scheme
governing vacancies on other municipal offices or boards. 30-A M.R.S. § 2602. Section 2602
lists eight circumstances for when a vacancy occurs, with “recall pursuant to section 2505 [of
Title 30-A]” as the last condition that could create a vacancy. Further, one should not presume
that “recall” was intentionally omitted in Title 20-A because the Legislature assumed “recall”
would be silently transported into Title 20-A from this general Title 30-A provision. The Title
30-A provision includes some of the identical conditions for vacancy listed in 20-A — for
example, resignation, death, removal of residency from the municipality. If the logic were that
vacancy grounds that are listed in Title 30-A are automatically transported into Title 20-A, why
relist some of them but not all of them in Title 20-A? There would be no need to re-list anything
in Title 20-A if it were the case that 20-A takes on everything from 30-A. Further, certainly if
the legislature intended all of the vacancy-provisions of Title 30-A to apply under the vacancy-
provisions of Title 20-A, then Title 30-A could have simply been incorporated by reference,
which is the most common method of statutory drafting and construction. (Just as, for example,
this very statutory scheme, with occasional incorporation of specific provisions of Title 30-A for
different purposes — see 20-A M.R.S. § 1473, incorporating by reference Title 30-A, chapter
121).

2 This section goes on to govern when notices of vacancy are communicated to participating municipalities, and how
those municipal officers of the municipality fill a vacancy. 20-A M.R.S. § 1474(2)-(3).



December 22, 2021
Page 7

All canons of statutory construction lead to the conclusion that the omission of “recall” as
a basis for creating a vacancy in regional school unit boards in Title 20-A, means that recall is
not a basis for creating a vacancy. This conclusion is reasonable, because once the school board
of directors is elected, each director is elected to serve on the board of RSU 21, as a separate
“pody politic and corporate,” not the specific municipality. 20-A M.R.S. § 1461(1).

Further no provision in the Plan submitted by the participating municipalities in this case
provided for one municipality’s exercise of “recall” to create a vacancy in the RSU 21 board.
Where the Plan in issue here, throughout its provisions, specifically referenced the governing
provisions of Title 20-A, it cannot be lightly assumed that the certificate of organization would
have issued by the State, had there been idiosyncratic recall provisions impacting the terms of
each director, or the overall board composition and voting apportionment. Indeed, the Plan
notably concludes, in the discussion of the RSU Board of Directors terms and elections, that
“Thereafter, all terms will be for a three-year duration,” and emphasizing that “No one
election year will see more than four of the twelve seats open.” Plan at 38, Note #2 (bold
emphasis added). The Plan specifically references 20-A M.R.S. § 1473 as the governing
structure for elections in terms of the regional school unit board, even in so far as it recognizes
that the election must be conducted in accordance with Title 30-A provisions “as amended by
section 1473(2) of Chapter 103-A of Title 20-A.” Plan at 37. This is again an acknowledgment
that the specific provisions governing vacancies of directors from Title 20-A control, not other
general provisions of Title 30-A.3

iii. Canon of Construction — Specific over the General

This analysis is also in keeping with the overarching principle of statutory construction
that specific statutes prevail over general ones when the two are inconsistent. Here, Title 20-A is
a specific statute governing the terms and vacancies of regional school unit board directors.
Inconsistent provisions from the general “elected officials” statute (i.., a Title 30-A provision
that as elected officials RSU directors are subject to recall) must give way to the specific statute
(i.e. the Title 20-A provision that RSU directors are not subject to recall). Houlton Water
Company v. Public Utilities Commission, 2016 Me 168, § 21, 150 A.3d 1284; South Portland
Civil Service Commission v. City of South Portland, 667 A. Two 599 (Me. 1995) (applying
principle between general and specific provisions of city charter). See Central Maine Power v.
Devereux Marine, Inc. 2013 ME 37, §22, 68 A.3d 1262 (it is a “fundamental rule of statutory
construction that we favor the application of a specific statutory provision over the application of
a more general provision when there is any inconsistency™).

An additional significant aspect of the analysis is that, in any event, standing alone, the
“recall” provision incorporated by reference in Title 30-A only allows for recall of an elected
official “only if the official is convicted of a crime, the conduct of which occurred during the

3 This is not to say that no general provisions of Title 30-A ever apply in Title 20-A’s governance of regional school
units — there are many subjects where Title 30-A provisions, or provisions from many other Titles, do apply to
school regional units and school board directors as governmental entities and government officials. The point is that
where Title 20-A applies to a specific situation — i.e., can charter “recall” cause a vacancy of school board directors?
—~ and a provision of Title 20-A directly answers the question, one may conclude the analysis there.



December 22, 2021
Page 8

official’s term of office and the victim of which is the municipality.” 30-A M.R.S. § 2505(9).
Clearly, that is not the case liere, so on its face section 2505 would not apply in any event.

Section 2505 does also provides that recall of an elected official “of a municipality” may
be otherwise provided by the municipality’s ordinances or charter. However, to read this
provision in harmony with Title 20-A, in the context of the present issue, at the very least what
this provision would mandate is that the charter provision in issue expressly and specifically state
that it applies to an RSU director, not just to the “elected officials of the municipality” in general.

I review each of the municipal charter provision below, under this lens.

iv. Charters/Ordinances

a. Kennebunk. Here, Kennebunk’s charter does not expressly state that its general
recall provisions apply to RSU School Board directors. This is necessary in order to capture any
arguable authority conferred by 30-A M.R.S. § 2505 to apply local recall provisions to RSU
directors. The only elected officials referenced in the charter are the Board of Selectmen — the
other officials being appointed. See Kennebunk Charter, Sec.. 3.11. Article VII of the
Kennebunk Charter governing the recall of elected officials, does not specifically include RSU
Board of Directors officials as “elected officials” subject to recall under Article VII. Again, the
RSU school board directors are not presumptively elected officials “of Kennebunk,” they are
elected directors of the body politic RSU 21 established under Title 20-A. If there is an intention
to include them as “a municipal officers” subject to the recall provisions of Title 30-A (thereby,
in turn, subjecting them to additional recall provisions of the municipal charter) the municipal
charter must at least say so.

b. Kennebunkport. Kennebunkport’s Administrative Code exemplifies the
importance of this issue a step further, by expressly stating that its removal provisions (section 5-
3 of Article I of the Administrative Code) apply to “any elected official of the Town of
Kennebunkport” — the provision immediately follows the descriptions of the Town Meeting
Moderator (section 5-1) and Selectmen (section 5-2) as the elected officials of the town, to whom
section 5-3 would then logically apply. Again, there is no clear distinction that elected directors
of RSU 21 — its own body politic — are subject to the removal provisions of section 5-3 of
Kennebunkport’s Administrative Code. Section 5-3 does not mention RSU school board
directors. The RSU 21 directors are elected directors of RSU 21, its own body politic, not “of
the Town of Kennebunkport.”

c. Arundel. Arundel’s municipal charter, providently, may be proof in the pudding

of these points regarding charter-based recall: First, Arundel amended its old section 5.0
governing its previous school board, by stating those old provisions only apply as necessary.
Significantly, those provisions had included a supplement to the “vacancy” provisions of Title
20-A MLR.S. § 2305, which had governed vacancies in its school committee before RSU
formation. Arundel Charter, Section 5.5. This is a tacit recognition that Title 20-A govemns,
including “vacancy” in office provisions, unless supplemented by a specific charter provision,
Second, Arundel’s specific “Recall of Elected Officials” provisions, section 14.3, states: “any



December 22, 2021
Page 9

elected official of the Town, with the exception of School Board members as noted in {30-A
M.R.S. § 2602], may be recalled and removed from elective office by the registered voters of the
Town as here provided.” Arundel Charter 14.3 at p. 28 (italics emphasis added). Reasonably
construed, the reference to Title 30-A section 2602 would be in order to incorporate by reference
that section’s inclusion of recall under section 2505 as a basis for creating a vacancy in office: in
other words, under Arundel’s charter, an RSU 21 director representative of Arundel might be
subject to recall for conviction of crime while in office pursuant to section 2505, but for no other
basis. But further without question, in keeping with the principles outlined here, the “recall of
elected officials” charter provisions do not otherwise apply to school board directors, as
Arundel’s charter makes clear by its own terms.

V. Policy Issues

I would emphasize that traditionally in Maine, public education had been a matter of
State rather than local concemn. School Committee of Town of Winslow v. Inhabitants of Town of
Winslow, 404 A. 2d 1988, 991-92 (Me. 1979). While the breadth of this proposition has been
undoubtedly narrowed in scope by later specific Legislative grants of home rule authority to
municipalities for governance of local school committees or school boards, the policy underlying
State interest in public education remains the same:

The preeminence of the State in educational matters, vis-a-vis local government is
clear. One authority on the subject has expressed the general principle and its
corollary implications in this manner:

The most universal element of conceptual design in the American school system
is the maxim that education is a concern of all the people. As it is usually stated,
education is a state function.

The conclusion from this is that education, even when delegated to municipal
officers, is different from most of the functions of municipal officers in that any
state-wide regulation takes precedence over local regulations even though the
right to establish the local regulations may appear to arise from a municipal
charter approved by the legislature or its agents or established by general home
rule regulations in the constitution itself. In other words, general powers of the
municipality, even though they may derive directly from the constitution, must
bow to state regulation on the field of education, established by authority of the
legislature. In such cases where the municipality acts as the local agent in charge
of education, the municipality is at one and the same time a chartered corporation
and an agency of the state.

H. Mort, The Law and Public Education 16-17 (1959).

Id, at 991-92 (citation in original).



December 22, 2021
Page 10

With the regional school unit statutory scheme of Title 20-A, this State preeminence
recurs again, precisely because it is in both the State’s and the participating municipalities® best
interests to advance a comprehensive statutory scheme of cooperative resource allocation and
other efficiencies relating to public education, which may be obtained by advancing regional
efficiencies. Thus, interpreting Title 20-A to require that any participating municipality
specifically provide in its charter how and whether any general municipal recall provisions will
apply, is in keeping with this overarching and preeminent group of policy interests. See 20-A
M.R.S. § 1451. Simply put, allowing one town’s general and undefined “recall” charter
provisions to disrupt the terms, composition, vacancies, and terms of service of school board
directors — each of whom has sworn an oath of office in relation to the regional school unit (20-A
M.R.S. § 1471(5)) — would disrupt these beneficial policies, including to the detriment of the
State and of the other participating municipalities.

D. Conclusion

So in conclusion, while the interplay between Title 30-A and Title 20-A is not without
uncertainty, in this case I would advocate for the position that RSU 21 School Board directors
are not subject to the general recall initiative under Article VII of the Kennebunk Charter that
was announced in Kennebunk in late November, and which was then apparently commenced by
service of correspondence on November 29, 2021. Iam prepared to discuss any further steps and
continue representation of the RSU 21 School Board as necessary, pursuant to this opinion and
under the circumstances.

Please feel free to let me know if you wish to discuss any aspect of this opinion, and I
would be happy to address any questions or concerns that may arise. Furthermore, if there are
any specific additional laws, cases, regulations, or policies relating to the question that you
would like me to consider, please do not hesitate to ask, and I will do my best to address any
other issues.

Very truly yours,
/s/ Russell B. Pierce, Jr.

Russell B. Pierce, Jr.



N O RMA N I Norman Hanson & DeTroy, LLC T207.774.7000

A N Y N Attorneys at L F 207.775.0806
H A N_S____Q__‘N Twsrganal Pla:;N www.nhdlaw.com
D E T R O Y P.0. Box 4600 rpierce@nhdlaw.com

Portland, ME 04112-4600

Russell B. Pierce, Jr.

December 22, 2021

VIA EMAIL ONLY

Michael W. Pardue, Town Manager
Town of Kennebunk

1 Summer Street

Kennebunk, ME 04043
mpardue@kennebunkmaine.us

Laurie A. Smith, Town Manager
Town of Kennebunkport

Town Hall

6 Elm Street

P.O. Box 566

Kennebunkport, ME
Ismith@kennebunkportme.gov

Keith Trefethen, Town Manager
Town of Arundel

257 Limerick Road

Arundel, ME 04046
townmanager{@arundelmaine.org

RE: Opinion on School Board Director Recall Initiatives: Legality Issues, and
Application of 20-A ML.R.S. §§ 1451 et seq.

Dear Messrs. Pardue and Trefethen and Ms. Smith:

This office has been retained by the RSU 21 School Board to review and render opinion
relating to the recent “recall” initiative publicly announced in Kennebunk, and potentially in
other parts of participating municipalities of RSU 21.

The legal opinion we have provided to the RSU 21 School Board is attached. We
conclude that the RSU 21 School Board Directors are not subject to recall under the general



December 22, 2021
Page 2

recall provisions of the respective local charters or ordinances. The comprehensive statutory
provisions of Title 20-A, and in particular 20-A M.R.S. § 1474 governing the creation of
“vacancies” on a regional school unit board, should operate to foreclose local recall provisions
from interfering with the duly elected Directors’ performance and duties of the RSU 21 School
Board in these circumstances.

We would welcome further discussion regarding this opinion.

Thank you for your attention to this matter.

Very truly yours,
/s/ Russell B. Pierce, Jr.

Russell B. Pierce, Jr.

cc: RSU 21 School Board (via email only)



AGENDA ITEM
DIVIDER




TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT,MAINE

— INCORPORATED 1653

Short-Term Rental Update

To: Laurie Smith, Town Manager
From: Eli Rubin, Community Planner
Date: January 6th, 2022

CC: Werner Gilliam, April Fortier

As of January 10t

409 applications have been submitted
387 applications have been approved
10 applications pending review
$160k generated in registration fees

Public Reminders

License certificates are emailed upon application approval. If you have not
received an email with your license certificate yet, please check your spam or
junk folder. License certificates can be resent upon request by calling or
emailing the Code and Planning office.

There are no defined eligibility requirements yet for renting in 2023 and
beyond. People who purchase homes or wish to begin renting short-term in
the future will have the opportunity to apply for a permit each October for the
subsequent year. However, potential future caps may limit the total number of
permits issued in a given year.

Properties purchased in 2022 will only be allowed to rent short-term if the
prior owner had obtained a permit. This includes Goose Rocks Beach.

Code enforcement will contact property owners and property managers to
schedule rental unit inspections. The ordinance requires inspections every 5
years, therefore not every unit will be inspected every year.

6 Elm Street, P.O. Box 566, Kennebunkport, Maine 04046
Tel: (207) 967-4243 Fax: (207) 967-8470

Item 9



